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OVERSIGHT HEARINGS ON THE 1980 CENSUS

NOVEMBER 5, 1979

HousE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON CENSUS AND POPULATION

OF THE COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE,
Chicago, Il.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m,, in room 2525
of the Federal Building, 219 South Dearborn, Chicago, Ill., Hon.
Robert Garcia of New York (Chairman) presiding.

Present: Congresswoman Cardiss Collins and Congressman Bennett
Stewart (Illinois).

Mr. GARCIA. I would like to start off this hearing by reading an
opening statement. Then, as has been the custom of the Subcom-
mittee on Census and Population, we will turn the chair over to those
Members of Congress who represent the city of Chicago so that they
will be able to call the witnesses and make certain that the people
who are here to testify are persons known to them.

The purpose of this hearing this morning is to learn more precisely
how the census will fare in and around the Chicago metropolitan area
next year.

I must say from the outset that I am delighted that my colleagues
joining me here today share the same interest and concern with the
1980 census as I (to. Unquestionably the 1980 census will be the most
ambitious and certainly the most costly data collection activity ever
undertaken by the Federal Government, yet, putting aside for a
moment the issue of cost, it is important to remember that the census
results will have a profound effect on the way Government allocates
its limited financial resources and determines political representation
in Congress and State legislatures for the decade ahead. During the
last fiscal year, for example, over $50 billion was allocated to States
and local communities on the basis of census data. These funds sup-
ported over 100 Federal programs designedd to improve housing, edu-
cation and employment to mention only a few.

None of this would have been possible, however, without the pub-
lic's support and participation in the census process. It truly does
count to be counted.

Despite the Government's $1 billion investment in the census not
everyone will be or, for that matter, want to be counted next year.
The reasons are legion, fear or distrust of Government, misconceptions
about the purpose of the census, doubts about the use of the data
and the confidentiality afforded indivi(lual records. All these factors
contribute to what is commonly referred to as the "undercount"
problem. (1)
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Based on an Urban League analysis of the undercount following
the 1970 census, it was estimated that the State of Illinois lost over
$7 million in revenue-sharing funds alone. That is just dealing with
revenue sharing. I am not talking about any other Federal funding.
Of that the city of Chicago rel)ortedly lost close to $2.5 million fromust this program. Of course the loss is much greater when additional

federal programs are taken into consideration. The issue, then, is to
minimize the eft -ts of the undercount. Above all we have to pull
out all the stops. in trying to convince the public of the overriding
importance of being counted. In many communities, especially those
populated by undocumented persons, this will not be an easy task.

at is why I have introduced legislation, House Joint Resolution
422, to make it perfectly clear that census information may not be used
as evidence in a deportation hearing. Although, to my knowledge,
the Census Bureau has never violated its pledge of confidentiality,
I believe this legislation will hell) to alleviate any lingering suspicions
individuals may have about the use of census data. I am likewise
hopeful that in the near future the President will issue a public
declaration regarding the inviolability, as well as the immunity, of
census records.

Again, let me say how pleased the subcommittee is to have been
invite(l to Chicago for this important hearing. I know that I look
forward to an interesting session.

I think that is all the cities I have been to the congressional (lele-
gation from the city of Chicago has truly been amongst those who
have been very actively trying to get the subcommittee to come out
and to hold a hearing in Chicago.

I want to especially thank Congressman Stewart and Congress-
woman Collins, and, of course, my good friend Congressman Marty
Russo.

There is going to be testimony here from other Congresspersons
as well. I understand Congressman Fary has testimony that he is
going to submit to the record.

In the 10 other cities where we have held hearings, I have turned
the chair over to those Members of Congress who represent that
specific area. Now, in this particular case, we have three Congres-
spersons right off the bat. We have got Congressman Russo, who is
going to be our first witness. We have got Congressman Stewart
and Congresswoman Collins. What I will do at this point, is turn
over the chair to Congressman Stewart and Congresswoman Collins
and let them call upon the witness, another one of our colleagues,
Congressman Marty Russo.

Mr. STEWART. Congresswoman, would you make your opening
statement, please.

Ms. COLLINS. I would be more than happy to.
First of all, let me thank you, Congressman Garcia, chairman of

th. Census Committee, for coming to the city of Chicago. We do have
some very special interests in this census. As you know, the city of
Chicago in the 1970 census counted, I believe we rated second or third
in all of the great cities of the United States in census undercount.
The State of Illinois, I believe, ranked third. In Chicago alone that
meant that 115,00-1 blacks and other minorities were not counted.
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They were just wiped out altogether. I think that this is a very inter-
esting place to have a hearing because of this fact.

Additionally, it is my understanding, from the Joint Center of
Political Studies in Washington, D.C., that as fur as black Americans
are concerned in the 1970 census, and the Census Bureau agreed with
this figure, the statisticians agreed with it, something like 1.88 million
people were not counted, black people, were not counted in the 1970
census. Readjustments had to be made, and so forth and so on, from
other kinds of data. I think this points out the importance of the city
of Chicago and the State of Illinois having this sort of a hearing to
bring to light very important and key information that we must have.

You have already touched on the kinds of moneys that we lose in
4ust revenue sharing alone, let alone the other things that we lose in
job slots, housing units and medicare and city funds and all these sorts
of different things. Another reason why this is very, very important.

Bennett and I have worked, of course, and you and Marty, are also
interested in this census for another reason. We want the greatest
participation possible for all the people that we represent. Certainly
participating in politics is going to be getting yourselves counted or
themselves counted as we hope to (1o.

Let me say finally, because we do want to hear from our witnesses
here, that I believe that this Nation, which has been built on the
creed of justice and equality for all, is n6t just for some. Some and all
must participate. This Nation, I believe, is a great nation. We have
to see to it that all the people here are represented. By that I mean
that we are counted. There can be no more invisible people in our
country. For this reason, I, along with you, and with Bennett, and
with Marty Russo, Fary, who is sending his statement, very much
appreciate the fact that you have found the time in your busy sched-
u le to come to the city of Chicago and to the State of Illinois for this
hearing. We thank you.

Mr. STEWART. Thank you, Congresswoman Collins.
I guess we just took for granted that you knew this was Congressman

Garcia, who represents the 21st District of the State of New York.
Congressman Garcia is the chairman of the Subcommittee on the
Census and Population of the Committee on Post Office and Civil
Service.

I think that we are extremely fortunate that we were able to bring
this bearing to Chicago in order that we might inform the people in
our various communities as to how important it is that we be counted.
This hearing is designed primarily for that purpose.

We will be having other types of hearings, which will not be con-
gressional hearings, br't we would certainly expose the communities
to the information which we will receive to(lay. We hope to be able to
(1o this in every community in order that we might be counted.

I do not think that I will have to repeat the fi,,ure stated earlier
concerning the loss of Government funds by being undercounted,
especially in the black and the Latino communities. I did not have
the slightest idea how important it was until I was in Congress and
serving on the Appropriations Committee. I began to realize then that
every (lime that, was appropriated was based upon the census count.

W hen we think of over 2 million blacks not being counted and then
think in terms of the money across the board, we are losing millions in
Federal funds. We allow ourselves to (1o everything that is humanly



4

possible to see to it that we standup and be counted. The census
information, which you will be receiving here today, will clearly point
to the importance of this confidential information. People should not
hesitate to give the information to the Census Bureau counter when
he comes.

Now we are going to move forward. Everybody is busy and every-
body wants to be first. It is impossible to put everybody on first. Some-
body has to be second and somebody has got to be third. Somebody
will have to be last. So what we are going to, is to try to move along to
accommodate you. I do know that Marty definitely has a meeting that
he must get to.

May I present to you Hon. Marty Russo, one of the outstanding
Members of the Illinois delegation in the Congress of the United States.

Marty Russo.

STATEMENT OF HON. MARTIN A. RUSSO, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mr. Russo. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I commend you, Mr. Garcia, for holding hearings in the city of

Chicago. Thank you for the opportunity for addressing this com-
mittee.

I would like to at this point associate myself with your comments
and the comments of my colleagues from Illinois. I think you have
put the importance of this hearing to the census in its proper perlspec-
tive.

We in Illinois are faced with the possibility of the loss of one or two
congressional seats because of at significant population decrease
throughout the State. We know that is true here in the city of Chicago.
If this is indeed true, then, of course, the principles of representation
in Congress must be served and those congressional seats rightfully
belong to other States showing population increases. tlowever, it
would be shameful if this great State Nas to lose representation in
Congress because our total population vas not counte(. Not only
would our citizens lose their voice andi representation, but they would
also be shortchanged in terms of Federal dollar returns to State,
county, and local governments, which tire based in a great measure
on census results.

Certainly the Census Bureau is planning on doing everything it
can to get at reliable count. What we must ail work for is a cooperative
effort on the part of our citizenry so that a true sense of our most
)recious natural resource, our people, is achieved.

I hope that the 20th census of our country is the most successful
ever. I p)ledge my cooperation aind that of my office to that effort.

Again, I want to thank you for the opportunity to he here and do
whatever I can to hell) make sure the census effort is successful in
our area.

I would be more than happy to answer any questions the chairman
or my colleagues tnay have.

Mr. STEWART. I would like to know, whether or not we tre really
going to be able to obtain an accurate count? Have you been ip-
f)roached by any person from the Census Bureau here in Chicago
or assistance in an out-reach programm to reach the people in your

community and in the city?
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Mr. Russo. Well, I halvi't )ersonally, bit maybe ly admini.-
traitive assistant would know whether mxv office ha been conta(tecd.

Mr. McCoRIGAN. Yes; Ne have been ti)nroac)el by ('harle- Wolfe
of the Bureau of the Census.

Mfr. STE\VAR'r. Then I must assume that he had a I)o,itive rel)o11,e
to that andl that we -will be able to obtain the coolieration there.

In your opinion, what can or shoutI the Bureau (to to make Sure
that Wve obtain a better census count than we have in the )at?

Mr. Russo. I think what is important, Mr. Stewart, is that we have
a cooperative effort of not only those in political life, but those in the
civiv organizations and local communities to "'-)rk together and dto
the things necessary to register people as muci .ts we can. I think it
is going to have to be a mouth-to-mouth, word-by-word, total com-
munity effort. If we can stress the things that you have mentioned
this morning, the problems that we will face in out area, if we don't
have a proper count, we have got to have community spirit. If we
(to that, I think we can register everybody. It has got to be a coopera-
tive effort because we are going to lose a lot if we don't work together.
I think that is what ought to be stressed. We need to involve not only
the political structure, not only the local organizations, but the l)eol)le
themselves in the actual counting and moving around the area to get
people. They will know by word of mouth who hasn't been contacted,
who should be filing things, because we ttilk among each other a lot.
I think it is important that we stress that area.

M\r. STEWART. One other question. ttow effective ito you think that
the mailing of the census-as I understand they l)rolose to mail about
90 percent of the census information. How effective do you think a
good count will be from the mail?

.\lr. Russo. I think if there is not proper followup that it is not
going to be as helpful as it could be. It is important to have that.

hat is the quickest way to get it into the home is through mail.
People always look at their mail. I think the important thing is for
those who don't respond that there is a proper followup I)rocedure to
get into that home and find out why it hasn't hapl)enedl and how we
can get that person registered.

I think Chairman Garcia mentioned the key problem that we face
is that the people themselves are afraid to fill it out because they fear
that somehow this may be used somewhere at some time against
them. We know with all the revelations that we have of the misuse
of some of our Federal agencies, it is no wonder that l)eople are
reluctant to fill out forms and send them back to the Federal Go\ern-
ment. What we have to (to is to assure those p)eop~le that if they filt
this form out then nothing, no repercussion may come as a result of
information they have given their Government. 1 thin k it is important
for us to (1o that in public statements and meetings throughout our
districts. Encourage l)eople to get involved andl not worry about
anything because nothing is going to hapl)en to them.

Mr. GARCIA. I would just like to say to you, Congressman Russo,
that the important thing that I think we have to stress in each of our
own congressional districts that what makes the 1980 census different
than the 1970 census, or any other census prior to this one, is that in
1970 there were really no fiscal formulas attached to the census. The
census was mandated by the Constitution for the p url)ose of political
seats, whether they be congressional or State legislative seats. So few

59-407 0 - 80 - 2
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people truly understand that the 1980 census for the first time is not
only the political power of the individual States, but the moneys that
come back into those States and localities. This is the most significant
of them all.

I would just like to, as the chairperson of this committee, thank
you because I know that you have been in the forefront in terms of
the census and the importance to the city of Chicago and to the State
of Illinois.

Mr. Russo. Thank you.
I would just add a comment. As I understand from the reports that

I have received, for eVery dollar the Illinois taxpayer sends to Wash-
ington we get back 70 cents. I think that in terms of the importance
of what this State means to this country that it is a shame that the
State of Illinois does not get back as much as they put into the country
for what we do for the country as a whole. I certainly hope that this
census will straighten those particular formulas out.

Ms. COLLINS. Marty, I am interested in your personal observation
about what happens when it comes down to funds for a city, such as
the city of Chicago or for suburban areas or the County of Cook, when
there is an un(lercount. What happens in terms of dollars? Does it
mean, or would you agree that it means-if 1 out of every 12 persons
is not counted how much money are you getting in? I ou are only
getting in $11, and what, happens then?

Mr. Russo. I think, Ms. Collins, that one of the problems we face,
and it is something that we have to stress, it is unfortunate that the
census is the basis. I would rather that the Congress set the formula
the proper way based on what we know is happening in our districts.
Again, the fact that Illinois is not getting its fair share back is an
indication of what the problem is in using the census as a formula for
getting the dollars out. Unfortunately that is what is being (lone so it
is important that we do something about it. Otherwise in States
around the country, California for example, gets almost $2 for every
dollar they send back. I don't think that is fair to the taxpayers in the
State of Illinois, especially our area in Chicago, that we should be
treated any differently than any other taxpayer in this country. I
think that it is important that we address those problems and that we
do something about it. If the census is one way of showing that those
of us in the Midwest and the Northeast want our fair share, that is
how we ought to handle it.

Ms. COLLINS. Wc very much appreciate your statement. I know
while you are sitting on Ways and Means you will certainly have the
State. of Illinois, particularly the city of Chicago, in mind when it
comes down to moneys and the tax formulas.Mr. Russo. We will gather up the moneys. It is up to Bennett toappropriate it properly.aIs. COLLINS. Thank you very much. We congratulate you on your

new appointment.
Mr. GARCIA. Thank you very much.
Mr. STEWART. We certainly appreciate your coming.
Our next witness will be Ms. Lenore Cartwright, commissioner of

the Department of Human Services for the city of Chicago.
I do not need to elaborate because you know what part of the city

of Chicago and how much of this city of Chicago is covered by the
Department of Human Services. If it is 110 percent in the city of
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Chicago, then 110 percent is covered by the department, because
she is a competent commissioner. She has taken time out to come here
today to testify because of the importance of this hearing.

Ms. Cartwright.

STATEMENT OF LENORE CARTWRIGHT, COMMISSIONER,
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES, CHICAGO, ILL.

MS. CARTWRIGHT. Chairman Garcia, members of the Subcommittee
on the Census and Population, good morning.

I am Lenore Cartwright, commissioner of the Department of
Human Services, city of Chicago. I am testifying before this con-
gressional committee because it is time once again for Americans to
stand up and be counted.

Census day will be Tuesday, April 1, 1980. It is important for the
citizens of Chicago and this cannot be overstated. Electorally speak-
ing, population totals accumulated from this count will not only pro-
vide the basis for reapportioning seats in the U.S. House of Hepre-
sentatives, but will also affect the representation in State and local
election districts. In an era that is marked by skepticism concerning
politicians, it is crucial to reinforce the democratic principal that the
electorate is fairly and equally represented. This is especially true in
Chicago, which stands to lose two congressional seats in 1980 due to
population projections of this city which have been based on past
census statistics. T1 therefore, it is imperative that we let our citizens
know that they must be accurately counted to assure that Chicago
is given its full voting power in the Congress of the United States.

Such a count would also give our citizenry its full voting strength
in State and local lawmaking bodies, but more is at stake than our
right of re presentation. As commissioner of the Department of Human
Services, ? am sensitive to the fact that census d ata is used to annually
allocate billions of Federal, State and local dollars. In turn, these
moneys are used to finance programs for education, health, recreation,
public safety, economic development, and other social services that
affect the quality of our lives.

At the Federal level alone, $50 billion is annually distribute l on
the basis of census statistics that help identify needs through defining
such terms as poverty areas and low-income population. Naturally
these funds greatly influence the types and quality of social services
that we can provide for the citizens of Chicago.

As commissioner for a department which performs the social
service functions for the entire city, I cannot afford to underestimate
the necessity of an accurate census count. After all, Federal moneys,
whether they are received directly from the Federal Government or
indirectly through various State agencies, constitute approximately
90 percent of the Department of Human Services budget of over
$120 million. Without an accurate count of our citizens, especially
our minority populations who have been traditionally undercounte,
these funds will not be forthcoming in the same quantities, nor will
they be routed to where they are needed most in the inner-city areas
of Chicago. Furthermore the community planning that is essential
to improve the living conditions of so many city families and restore
life to so many city neighborhoods is greatly affected by census
statistics.
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All demographic information that is utilized by planning agencies
is gathered from census material. We cannot expect to solve our prob-
lems without knowing their dimensions. An accurate count provides
us with the measures that we need to effectively plan for the future of
our communities, One factor which affects the living conditions in
our community is the employment situation in any given area of the
city. Once again census data is vital.

Wein Chicago are losing literally thousands of potential jobs through
legal channels because so many of our minority groups are under-
counted in the census. Both the Equal Employment opportunity
Commission and all affirmative actiln guidelines are based on propor-
tional statistics that are found in census materials. If minorities are
not accurately counted, they will not rea) the benefits of Federal
regulations that were designed to foster employability and promotion.

For all these reasons, the Department of Human Services will try
to do whatever it can to promote an accurate census count. We have
already agreed to let the U.S. Census Bureau utilize space in our
community service centers so that local residents may sign up to help
with the 1980 count. Many of us are urging our friends, neighbors, and
community organizations to spread the word about the importance
of filling out the census forms and having others do the same, not only
filling it out, but explaining what it is and :helping with the filling out.

As long as governmental representation and financial aid is deter-
mined by population figures, none of us, especially our minority
groups, can afford to be politically and economically shortchanged.

We are realists. We know the Government cannot determine people's
needs without citizen assistance, nor can it make the proper plans to
meet those needs without cooperation on the census. Therefore, I
hope that all Chicagoans will join together to make the 1980 census
100 percent accurate. We should all spread the wor(d that if people
want to count they must be counted.

Thank you.
Mr. STEWART. Thank you.
Commissioner, inasmuch as you probably cover the largest number

of areas in the city as the commissioner of the Department of Human
Services, how effective do you think )eople, With the experience, the
background, the interest and the concern of one such as you, can be
by participating and helping to get the message over to the people
how important the census is? If so, what do you think would probably
be the best method to use to get this over with reference to public
relations?

Is. CARTWRIGHT. I think the best way that I can utilize my back-
ground, both as an ex-professor of urban planning and policy, and
now as commissioner of the Department of 1-luman Services, will be to
participate in the program that the U.S. Census Bureau is going to
have going in our 14 service centers, to really get out in the community
and have training sessions with the community resident that will be
participating in the count. I feel that that is going to be ,xtrernely
productive if we handle it in the right way. Bringing in our advisory
councils, touching base with all of the institutions, agencies and or-
ganizations th t ?xist within those communities, and getting them
involved with, directly with the people that will be going out and help-
ing with the count. Just mailing out forms is not going to make it.
The forms themselves leave much to be desired. Sending out things
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in the mail without that neighbor approach is not going to work. I
think it was Hubert Humphrey that said Governmentican never sub-
stitute for the helping hand of a neighbor. Neighbors know neighbors.
They know how many neighbors they have, they know where they
are. We hope that our service centers cain be utilized to make that
helping hand of Government to be more like the helping hand of a
neighbor to dispell the fears that people have and, again, to make that
slogan if the people want to count, they must be counted, meaningful
to them.

Mr. STEWART. A number of us, have been pushing to recruit people
who actually will do the door-to-door work and the counting and who
live in the communities where they are working. Do you feel like that
should give us a better census count than those we have received in
some previous years when we did not concentrate on community
people who are neighbors?

M s. CARTWRIGHT. We certainly feel that that has merit. We are
going to be stressing that in our service centers, peoplee in the neighbor-
hoods making the counts.

Mr. GARCIA. Ms. Cartwright, if I may, I just want to stay on that
last point. One of the areas that we have been really stressing and
pushing has been that people from the community must count that
community. I believe as the Commissioner of Human Resources, the
person who is responsible to, for the most part, those services that are
going to be provided to the people of Chicago, if this city is similar
to my own city of New York you have a tremendous responsibility.
I would hope that amongst the areas that we try to stress is that if a
person lives in the community that person should get first priority
in terms of counting that community. In 1970 and 1960 that did not
take place. As a representative of an intercity district, to share with
you for just one moment my own personal experience, I saw a lot of
nice, young college kids who came in from suburban areas and who
tried their best, but who, in the case of my district, could not speak the
language and, in other instances, were afraid to knock at the doors of
some of the public housing projects.

I would urge you, especially with the network of offices that you
have through the metropolitan Chicago area, that we make every
effort to get people from the community to count the community.
In spite of all the television conversations that you may hear about
patronage for the census, I want to assure you that it is not going to be
as easy to get good enumerators and people to count as the networks
are playing it up today. If it were such a romantic job, you would
not have a three-to-one turnover, as you have historically had in the
other census.

I say that to you more as a statement because of the tremendous
responsibility you have for this metropolitan urban center than in
the form of a question.

NIS. CARTWRIGHT. Thank you.
M s. COLLINS. 'Ms. Cartwright, I believe, if I heard you correctly,

that you said that your office was trying to get people who would
assist people in filling out the forms. Did I understand you to say that?

IS. CARTWRIGHT. Yes.
M s. COLLINS. How do you hope to go about achieving that sort of

thing? People are concerned about privacy. It is a question I have
been wondering about. If a person won't fill out his own form simply
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because he feels there is a problem with his own privacy, how do you
think that he might let a neighbor, and particu arly a neighbor, fill
that form out for him or her?

Ms. CARTWRIGHT. I really don't know other than trying to stress
the fact of the benefits to be derived from sharing the information in
an open and honest way and with one neighbor telling another one,
look, I had to put the same things (lown. I really don't know. That is

robably the key and probably why those training sessions where you
elp someone learn how to ask questions in a nonthreatening way and

to get the information by showing the benefits to be derived, that more
benefits can be derived by answering the questions than not answer-ing them.Is. COLLINS. Will the Department of Human Services be having

those training sessions in conjunction with the Censuis Bureau?
Ms. CARTWRIGHT. Yes; and this is the first time that we have (lone

this. They will be having them in the 14 communities that have serv-
ice centers throughout the metropolitan Chicago area.

Ms. COLLINS. Let me ask you one more question. I believe I heard
you to say that the forms themselves leave a great deal to be (esired.
In which respect? Are they too, long, are the questions too personal?
What are your basic criticisms of the forms themselves?

Ms. CARTWRIGHT. I feel that for many peo ple they are threatening
just in the way they look. They are long and I do think that they ask
many unnecessary questions.

Ms. COLLINS. Have you, because you are going to be the one who
is going to be playing a tremendous part in the city of Chicago, made
your feelings known to the Bureau of the Census about what you
think?

Ms. CARTWRIOHT. No. I will. I felt since they had gone to the
printers that it was a little late, but I certainly will in the training
sessions so that a rationale can be found as to why we ask questions.
I think a lot of this will come from the citizens themselves really stating
the objections that they have to some of the questions and supporting
those that they feel are correct and necessary.

Ms. COLLINS. When you get that information, you, of course, had
better convey that to the Census Bureau.

Ms. CARTWRIGHT. They will be working right with us. They will
be getting the same information that we will be receiving.

MS. COLLINS. I sure hope you will share some of that information
with those of us who are Members of Congress. We, too, will be faced
with trying to find solutions to these same kinds f questions when we
talk to our constituency on a one-to-one basis about the 1980 Census.

I thank you very much.
Ms. CARTWRIGHT. Congresswoman, I am looking forward to those

of you from Chicago, Congressman Stewart and Congresswoman
Collins, to participate in some of those training sessions.

Mr. STEWART. I certainly appreciate your taking the time out to
come here. I appreciate the approach that you have taken towards
this census. I have been on this census kick now for about 4 months.
I dedicated two of my Saturday radio programs to this. I also know
how important obtaining an accurate count is to the city of Chicago.
I want to commend you for what you are doing and encourage you
to continue to do what you are (loing. If there is anything that I can
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do to help with any program that you have, all you have got to do
is to call me.

Ms. ('AR'rw IGH'T. hank you, ('ongressmnn.
Mr. STEWART. As our next witness we have tile directorr of the

Census for the ('ity of (Chicago, Mr. Stan Moore. I un(lerst and that
there tire other representatives . I see Mr. Lynch over there. If there
aire other represent tives from the ('ensus that woull like to partici-
pate in this, if you would come forward at this time and each one of
you c nl make your statement.

STATEMENT OF STANLEY D. MOORE, REGIONAL DIRECTOR,
BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Mr. MOORE. I ,.;ee that several members of my .taf have joined us.
1 would like Ms. Grady, who is responsible for Community Services,

esl)ecially in some of the areas the (ommissioner hal talke(d about, to
be recognized.

Mr. Lucas asked to come to ('hicago from Washington. lie is
responsible for the national i)rogran and[ it might be of some interest
just to have him exphin what the national i)rogram is all I' out.

Now that we aire here, I would like to introduce the members of the
Bureau of the ('ensus. They will be playing a key role in the census in
Chicago.

This is Dr. Ferber, an assistant to M.,r. Barabba, the Director of the
Bureau, from Washington; Ms. Mary Grauly, who is responsible for
community service programs here Il the ('hica(go Region; Larry
Lu~cas, who is responsible for national programs, he is Washington
based ; ilso in the audience is the Chicago Assistant Regional Director
for the Census Bureau, Dwight Dean; the gentleman behind him is
responsible for the management of the Regional Census (-enter, Jim
,Joh:,ofl,. and also our data user per-son who is responsible for giving
out tiata to peoplee who call our office, Steve Lue.

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Subcommittee on Census and
Population, my name is Stanley D. Moore. I am the (hicago Regional
Director of the U.S. Census Bureau. It is a pleasure to be here and to
discuss the upcoming 1980 census, its history and recent developments.

I would like to begin bv noting that the ('hictgo Regional Office is
one of the 12 regional o&ces conducting census activities throughout
the country. The Chicago Regional Office will be responsible for the
States of Illinois, Indiana, and Kentucky in the forthcoming census.
These States are home for some 20,115,000 Americans and reflect a
combination of large cities, urban areas, small towns and extremely
rural communities.

In your letter of invitation, you suggested that we address several
issues. One, why the need for an accurate count; two, the effect of the
undercount on human services; three, what we intend to do in 1980
to alleviate the undercount.

I will briefly address each of these issues with some overlapping
because of the relational aspect of thv subject matter.

Why the need for an accurate census count? Increasing concern
about underenumeration reflects the growing awareness of the political,
economic, and human service consequences of the undercount.
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Political representation :; at issue, not only at the Federal level,
but also at State and local levels. The census count is used in (letermin-
ing seats for the U.S. House of Representatives, as well as for various
State and local legislative bodies.

As Members of Congress, I ain sure that you are aware of tile politi-
cal significance that has been attached! to each census since the first
one was taken in 1790. Your seats and the total number of seats fromll
each State in the House of Representatives are determined by our
effort and this has always been a factor in the political life of the
Nation.

The undercount also affects (istribution of Federal and State funds
for social service programs. Funds for e(lucation, health, transl)orta-
tion, housing, community services, an i manpower programs, as well as
Federal funds for the general revenuie-sharinig programs are allocated
by statutory grant-in-aid formulas in which pOllation is an important
element.

The year 1980 clearly emerges as the most significant census in our
Nation'. history. The political importance of the census is paralleled
by the economic significance of our results. Since tile last decennial
census in 1970, the Federal Government has turne(I increasingly to
utilizing formulas based in whole or in part on census data, for dis-
tributing funds to State and local jurisdictions. There are now well
over 100 such programs dispersing well over $50 billion a year to these
jurisdictions. Thus, beyond rel)resentation in the House of Represen-
tatives, the State capitols, and even oi city councils, it is to every
person's interest economically to be counted in the census. Thus, there
is a need for not only the Bureau of tile Census, but all public officials
and civic-minle(l individuals to work at encouraging every segment
of the community to be counted. Many of the Federal programs I have
mentioned are targete(l on precisely those groups that have tra(li-
tionally been undercounted.

On the basis of our evaluation of the 1970 census, we believe that
about half of the undercount is attributable to missed households
and the other half to the inability to fully record all in(lividuals in
those households that we did cover. I woul(i like to briefly a(tdress how
we basically intend to improve this census-taking process.

As you know, the 1980 census will utilize a two-prong approach; a
mail-out/mail-back procedure, and], two, a careful follow-up and door-
to-door information gathering where needed. Let me eml)hasize at this
point that a low mail return rate in no way automatically means that
an undercount will occur. Rather, this becomes a control point that
indicates to us where additional enumeration will be need to go door-
to-door in order to obtain the necessary information from those who
failed to return their questionnaires through the mail.

In order to reduce the missing of households, we have developed a
much more complete set of )lans for the 1980 census than those that
existed in 1970. Using commercially l)urchasedl mailing lists where
available, the Bu,'eau, through its precanwass operation, will check all
available households onsite before census day, April 1. Working with
the U.S. Postal Service, we then will do three independent postal
checks prior to the actual mailing andl at each of these checks add or-
delete to the lists we are developing. Our l)roce(lures also call for work
ing with local review committees in the :39,000 local jurisdictions to
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determine if there are errors between our household count and those
locally available.

Finally, we have placed greater attention to determining the
vacuacy statu.-, of those units that initially turned I up in this cate.zory.
We believe otur efforts to definee housing, units represents; a significant
improvement over 1970.

T1lie process of enumerating all in lividtials residIirlu ill each hols+e-
hnd -a psychological as w\Al as a physical challenge for a variety
of reasons. ''here my ) relictatnce on the l)art of many citizen,
to fully identify tile composition of a given household because of
individual I)erceptions of the consequences. Public housing C(des,
various; welfare regulations, anl the legal -tatm.s of each resident
impact these preceptions. The subcomni ittee in earlier hearing ; hear I
testimony lboit these I)roblens and there is little that I can al(l.

What additional programss are plannedI to minimize the undercount?
At the broadest level, we are uindlertaking a massive public edlucation
program which will utilize television, radio, printed media, andl
classroom material to be taken home bV schoolchildren. Working
with the Advertising Council, we believe this program represent-; a
pro bono effort of between $20 anl $40 million.

Beyond this we have (evelope(d an entire community service
program which works to plit people into the field in Jprecielv those
areas where the traditional undercount has occurre I. Unlike tile
temporary census employee who will he hired jumit prior to April 1,
these communtitv service specialists have been working for the past
2 years in an effort to seek out community-based organizations and
groups which take the word to their neighborhoolls that the census
brings benefits to their comnunities. They have simmltaneoily
stressed the need to inform residents about the absolute confidentiality
of the census data and thus the absence of risk for the individual
in answering the questions fully and completely.

These comnnmt ity service specialists are in'Iigenous to minority
communities and have extensive prior experience working in hardI
to enumerate areas, representing black, lispanic, Asian, and native
Americans.

Prior to commencing their outreach work for the 1980 census,
they undergo an extensive training program in our regional office and
at Census Bureau Healquarters in Suitland, Md. This training
includes basic data training as a key component of the program.
This is to illustrate to community groups ways in which the data
directly affects their political representation, potential for fun(ling,
and community planning.

To implement the community service program, the Chicago region
has been divided into 10 target areas, with one or more specialists
assigned to each. The program operates throughout the counties in
each target area, as well as in the cities. In Chicago a specialist lias
been assigned to specific district office areas assuring coverage of all
minority neighborhoods;. They work N ith community organizations,
civicc and civil rights groups, churches, schools, minority businesses,
social and fraternal clubs, unions, and State, Federal, and local
agencies serving these area,;. The program has also gained the co-
operation of the boards of education, public housing authorities,
minority media, public libraries, and other entities serving minority
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communities. They explain the importance of the census and suggest
ways in which the groups can assist in implementing the 23 com-
munity service projects, which includes a wide variety of program-
matic initiatives suitable to adaptation by the above-mentioned
organizations.

Also included are contacts with mission societies, the Salvation
Army, migrant worker groups, and the like, in our effort to count
transient groups an,] others of this type.

National civil rights organizations as well as local groups, acutely
concerned with the undercount, are actively working with the com-
munity service program and are assisting in creating an awareness
of the necessity of being counted. The mutual goal is for the 1980
census to promote cooperation and participation.

Mr. Chairman, thank you and the committee members for your
time. I will be glad to try and answer any questions.

Mr. STEWART. Thank you, Mr. Moore.
I believe I would ask Mr. Lucas if he would come next, inasmuch

as the other two representatives are local. Lie covers the national
scene, lie can give us some insight into the national problems and
solutions to these problems.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE LUCAS, NATIONAL PROGRAMS,
BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Mr. LUcAS. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Garcia, other (listinguishe(l Con-
gresspersons, Congressman Stewart, Congresswoman Collins, it is
certainly a pleasure to be here. It is a pleasure to be able to represent
the Census Bureau and to outline some of the programs that have
been established in order to make the 1980 census the best census
ever taken.

One of the new programs that was initiated in the Census Bureau
in 1974 was a minority statistics program. Under the minority sta-
tistics program there were several components. One is the advisory
committee: the Census Advisory Committee on the Black Population
for the 1980 Census, the Census Advisory Committee on the Spanish
Origin Population for the 1980 Census; and the Census Advisory
Committee on Asian and Pacific American Advisory Committee for
the 1980 Census. We do not have an advisory committee for the
American Indians, but through communications with several Indian
tribes at regional meetings, we were instructed that the best way to
contact an Indian community was not to put together a formal ad-
visory committee, as we did with the other minority groups, but to
deal with them on a regional and tribal basis, as we have been doing.

Each of these advisory committees has 21 members. They come
from a broad representation across the country, and also in other areas
and fields of work. We ,lo have three representatives on the three
different advisory committees from Chicago. We have Rev. George
Riddick on the Black Advisory Committee. We have Ms. Rhea
Hammer on the Spanish Origin Committee. We have Dr. William
Loo on the Asian and Pacific American Advisory Committee.

The reason for putting these advisory committees together was
we wanted some input from the communities and from national
organizations as to what they thought some of the problems might
be with the Census Bureau in counting people in 1980.
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The first advisory committee that we put, together was the Black
Advisory Committee. They came in and outlined many of the problems
that they felt took place in the taking of the 1970 census. Some of
those problems are the problems that you have outlined here this
morning. One was that in many cases we brought people from out of
the communities into hard-to-enumerate communities to take the
census. I happened to have been with the Census Bureau in 1970 and
I do know that we tried as hard as we possibly could to employ people
from the community. I am not saying that some of the people were
not outsiders, but I am saying that we made an effort. I (do know that,
we are making the same type of effort with greater emphasis in pre-
paring to take the 1980 census.

Also with the Spanish Advisory Committee, to just briefly talk
about that for a minute, in 1970 to count the Spanish-origin popula-
tion we only had a 5 percent sample. Through many different meetings
and hours of communications with the Spanish-Origin Population
Advisory Committee and the Census Bureau, there will be 100 percent
Spanish counts for the 1980 census.

M S. COLLINS. How (1o you know there is going to be a 100 percent
count?

Mr. LUCAS. It will be on all the questionnaires that we send out.
The 1970 was only on 5 percent of the questionnaires that we sent out
to the households in the country, but this time it will be on 100 per-
cent of all the questionnaries that we send out.

Mr. GARCIA. We were under the impression that you were saying
100 percent count of all Hispanics and that just seems to be impossible.

NMr. LUCAS. I am glad that you corrected me on that.
Some of the problems we had with the Asians in saying that they

were undercounte(d was because of the way the race item was put on
the questionnaire. We had hours of discussions regarding how the
race item and the ethnicity item should be placed on the questionnaire.
We think we have possibly one of the best questionnaires that has been
put together.

Let me speak briefly about the national services program, which is
another component of the minority statistics program. We had started
to neet with national leaders before the 1970 census. We had started
to meet with the national leaders before the 1970 census, but our
findings in the 1970 census, which, as you know, the undercount was
estimated at approximately 2.5 percent, with the black undercount
being about 7.7 percent and the overall white undercount being about
1.9 percent. We didn't have sufficient data to estimate an undercount
of the Spanish-origin population or the Asian and Pacific American
population and other minority groups.

What we found we had to (o with the national leaders was that we
had to go and educate them befo:e they could start to filter the infor-
mation (loA n to some of the local organizations.

Also the third coml)orent of the minority statistics program is the
community services program. I Fm sure Ms. Grady will tali about the
community services program that we have put together here in
Chicago. Just to talk about the community services program just
briefly on the national level, and to go back and just give you a brief
history of what happened in 1970, in 1970 we had approximately 27
community educators. These community educators were brought in
in late November or early December. We had no formal training. We
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only had one meeting in Washington where we brought the l)eol)le
together and said go out and make the people aware that the census
has got to be taken.

From that program, we went back to Washington and we decided
that we woul(dhave to have a more structured program and we would
have to have more people out in the field. So we started to target for a
group of community services persons of 200. Now, 200 might not
sound like a great number to cover the total population, but when you
think of 200 compared to approximately 27 in 1970, we think it is a
tremendous advancement.

What has happened with the community services programs, they
have been recruited from the communities, brought to the Census
Bureau, trained and sent back into their communities so that they
can make their communities aware of what is going on. The people
that they are in contact with are the people that have the ability and
the credibility to reach the people who might be undercounted in the
1980 census.

I think at this point that I should stop and let '.Is. Grady talk
about the community services programs, then, here in Chicago.

Mr. STEWART. I am interested in Ms. Grady for two reasons. I am
interested in the overall census and I am interested in it because she
is my neighbor.

STATEMENT OF MARY GRADY, COMMUNITY SERVICES PROGRAMS

MIs. GRADY. Thank you.
Congressman Garcia, Congressman Stewart, Congresswoman Col-

lins, it is a pleasure to have you in Chicago and to have you here to
participate in this important hearing.

Mir. Lucas has told you something about the national community
services program. I shall focus my remarks on the local community
services program.

We have what we feel is an excellent staff of trained professional
community service specialists. As Mr. Moore indicated in his remarks,
these specialists are located throughout the three States which we
have under our jurisdiction. I sha!l mention specifically the city of
Chicago. We have the city of Chicago divide(d into 10 acres, which
will be covered by the 10 district offices from which the census will be
taken. We have community services specialists assigned to designated
target areas within the city. Each of these trained specialists is resl)on-
sible for contacting all of the community organizations, the churches,
the schools, the social, civic, et cetera, organizations, clubs, in these
areas. They have been doing this for quite a number of months. They
meet with the constituencies of each organization. They make available
to these organizations the data and the services which we have. they
explain the importance of the census and they outline to them the 23
specific cooperative projects which they can participate in.

In addition to this overall coverage of the city, and might I say
that, throughout, our region we have similar projects, we also have
been dealing very extensively with many organizations. As Commis-
sioner Cartwright indicated, we have been in touch with her depart-
ment for many months. We have been working cooperatively with
her. We have been working with the Chicago Board of Education,
the Chicago Housing Authority, with practically every Federal, State
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and city entity which is either located in minority communities or
impacts on these communities.

We have hell many data sessions, many conferences, wo ikshops.
We are planning specific meetings in each target area. Prior to the
larger meetings which wve arc now going into for many months we
have been having many smaller meetings of various kinds. We can
report that. there is considerable interest throughout the city and
throughout our area in the census. However, we feel that theie is a.1
great (ieal more that needs to be done to stimulate the awareness
and the concern. So when March 28 comes and people receive their
census questionnaires in the mail, they will mail them back.

One of the important things that my stair stresses in dealing with
community-based people is this. There will be adequate followup.
Even though we are using a mail-in/mailback -system this time, every
household which (lops not return a census form by mail will be visited
by a census enumerator.

I would like to mention that in Hispanic areas we are working very
strenuously to make certain that the people advising the homes will
be bilingual bicultural people.

I would be happy to answer any questions.
Mr. STEWART. VJ r. Feiber?
Dr. FERBER. I have nothing to add, Congressman.
Mr. GARCIA. lie will be there in case there are any problems to

sort of )ut a little icing on the cake.M'. STE\VART. I don't know whether any of you worked with dL1e
census of 1970. That was 10 years ago and you probably weren't old
enough.

Mr. COLLINS. Stan made the mistake of raising his hand.
Mr. MOORE. That was a mistake, but. I was working in 1960 too.
Mr. STEWART. The question I am interested in now is (t1 you detect

an increase in the interest on the part of the minorities in this census
coming up in 1980. Do you sense an increase in their desire to be
counted or in the desire of the community leaders and those individuals
who are sponsoring the information for the census to be sure that
they be counted? Have we any increasing interest in that direction?

Mr. MOORE. I think so because in Chicago-and I can speak
mainly for Chicago because I have been working here for a long time
in trying to help create that, interest-one of the programs we have
is we ask for volunteer speakers. I am surl)risel at the different func-
tions that I o to now and people take time, 15, 20 minutes of their
time, unsolicited, just to talk about the Census Bureau.

I think ou can attest to that, Congressman, because you were at a
function that I attended and I was very surprised to hear them just
stop and talk about the census for 10, 15 minutes. That is happening
all over the city now. We have encouraged people like yourselves and
people in the communities that whenever they have a special program
to also talk about the census. It has become a household word. We are
trying to tell people that they need not fear the Census Bureau. I find
quite a bit more interest to(lay than I did in 1970.

Mr. STEWART. Mr. Lucas, you mentioned that in 1970 and previous
years you were having problems in trying to recruit individuals to
make the count in the communities, bu yet you tried. You mentioned
there was a great turnover. I think Congressman Garcia mentioned
that there was a great turnover. Many people could not (1o the kihid of
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job that needed to be done. What are some of the problems that you
encounter when you go out and atteml)t to recruit an in(lividualto
come in and to work and assist in taking the census? What are some
of the problems that .you run ul) against?

Mr. LucAs. I thinkI AN-ill just partly answer that based on my experi-
ence in 1970. Mr. Moore and his staflf are in the process of recruiting
now and have been recruiting for the many different surveys that we
have ongoing throughout the 10-year period. Many people who want to
work for the Census Bureau (Ion't unlerstan(d the nature of the work
and they don't understand that it is hard work.

I started with the Census Bureaiu as an interviewer. I have to be
honest that I didn't un(lerstan(l what happens behind that floor; 95
percent of the people that you call on are beautiful. The other 5
percent can really make it a long, week or a long lay. We find that
once we brought a lot of people in, in 1970 and after they ha(I taken the
test they came to the training, they start to take the training and
don't realize that the training is this technical, an(l they will (Irop out.
They will go out for maybe 1 day, 2 (lays and knock on doors and
because of some of the experiences that they will have they wil (lecicle
that they don't want to (1o this job. Therefore, you have to go through
the training process again andl train other people. I found that not
only did we have that problem with recruiting people to vork on the
decennial census, but we had some of the same problems with re-
cruiting people on the many different surveys to work in what is
considered the hard-to-enumerate areas. Many of these people have
to work when it is convenient to find the people at home. That means
that many of the people have to work in the morning, they have to
make calls in the afternoon and they have to make evening calls.
Some of these areas are very tough and very difficult to enumerate
in even in the daytime.

I think Mr. Moore might want to elaborate a little bit more on this.
Mr. MOORE. I find that basically we, the Census Bureau, is a very

frugal organization and we pay low salaries and it is hard work. It is
not a job that you can make a lot of money out of. It is a very hard job.

As far as dangerous, the area being dangerous to work in, we find
that if we work people in their own neighborhoods-Congressman
Garcia talked about, indigenous people-and that is very important
to us. Everybody doesn't think that their neighborhood is a dangerous
neighborhood, If you hire people and work them in the neighborhoods
they live in they look at their neighborhood's as being safe. It isn't
a lot of money and it is a lot of work.

Mr. STEWART. One other question following the same vein. The
enumerators or your census people are on full-time jobs for that period
of time that they are supposedly working from the time you start
your census until you end it? D,) you have people that are already
employed and who can do a decent job of helping with this census?
In other words, do you have people that are already employed being
employed to work the census?

Mr. MOORE. Yes, we have a regular census staff that carries on the
current programs, current programs being programs like the CPS,
current population survey,which are the employment and unemploy-
ment statistics that come out on a monthly basis, we carry on that
program at the same time we do the decennial census. All the inter-
viewers that, are hired are hired on a piece rate; 90 percent of them
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will be hired on a piece rate to do the census for the 1980 population
and housing census. We will be training the supervisors, the inter-
viewers, the crew leaders, the sul)ervisors and right on ul), all of those
are new pcol)le that are coming on.Mr. STEWaT. What 1 am trying to get to, you said they are hired
on piece rates. I am a school teacher. I got out of school at 3 o'clock in the
evening and want to work in my community. I can go out there and
work until 12 o'clock at night and a.m. to do a decent job out there.
Could I get a job as an enumerator in the census? That is the question
I am trying to raise.

Mr. MOORE. Yes, you couhl get a job in the census. What we (Io
is hire interviewers that live in an area, we will test that interviewer,
and hopefully we will get people right in the neighborhood. If you are
a schoolteacher, we would rather have somebody that is (loing it full
time, but if you are a schoolteacher and you pass the examination
antl you can get the work (lone in the 6- to 8-week period that we
need interviewers, sure, you can take the job.

.MS. COLLINS. Mr. Moore, I have a number of questions that I
would like to ask, if you don't mind. 1 am wondering, and perhaps I
should know as a member, but I am wondering how the Privacy Act
that we passed affects or impacts on the confidentiality of the census
that is going to be taken. Did you get a waiver or something on that?

Mr. MOORE. I think title :Il takes care of the confidentiality of
the Census Bureau. 1 don't think the Privacy Act has anything to (1o
with title XIII.

MIS. COLLINS. You mentioned, when Congressman Stewart asked
you about the desire to be counted, I question that because I was
in my district, and I have been in other districts throughout the
country considerably in the last 2, :3 months, and I just wondered
about the desire of the John Q. Citizen to be counted among certain
levels of people. Among or at the cocktail parties that we all happened
to go to everybody, is aware the census is coming up and what have
you, but I go into parts of my own district, for example, and I talk
about the census and I am hearing people say, well, what good is it
going to (1o for us to be counted, the only thing that is going to happen
is that somebody is going to come in and ruin whatever it is that we
have for them. I have heard other people say they are not letting any-
body into their house. I hear other people say the forms the last time
were too long and what have you anti they threw them away, and all
that kind of different stuff. I am wondering how aroused is John Q.
Citizen.

Mr. MOORE. You are correct. I find the same thing. We have been
working primarily with what we call the upper crust. Not just pri-
marily with them, but we have been working to educate people to
carry the work forward for us because we d(In't have that many
people. We are now in the neighborhoods explaining those question-
naires. We have a program that, we call questionnarie familiarization
where we are bringing in people like Commissioner Cartwright to
open the areas for us so that we can have them familiarize theirselves
with what the question is and why we are asking those questions.
What is the importance of those questions, \%hy are those questions
important to them. They are not just there because we want them
there. Each one of them are there for a reason.
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There are still people who for their own reasons don't want to be
counted, like people engaged in illicit activities, illegal activities.
There are people who (lon't want to be countedl because they' live in
projects andl in their own minds if they let people know how many
)eople are in those households that they night be put out of those
households or their checks might be cut off. We have a program here
in Chicago where we have divided up ('hicago into 10 areas. We
have assigned a community service person to that area and that per-
son's responsibility is to get the religious leaders, educational leaders,
the people that can carry the word forward and educate them and tell
them about our confidentiality. We want that word not just on the
cocktail circuit, but in the indigenous community. There is a problem
with that. I have asked people about it and they have told me they
don't want to be counted. We think, or at least'I feel, that we hav e
gotten to the more educated person, but I (o feel that we still have a
job to get down to the grassroots level.

IS. COLLINS. Ms. Grady, I think you said that you have 23 sell-
arat-e projects within community services. Name off four or five of
those for me.

Ms. GRADY. I would be very happy to. First of ill, we have a very
extensive l)roject dealing with the Board of Education, private and
parochial schools also. Actually, we have a two-pronged effort. Na-
tionally the Census Bureau has an educational project, but locally
we have been dealing with the Board of Education actually for over
10 years. I was one of the original 27 peo ple back in 1970. We also
have a project agenda, which 'Mr. Mloore alluded to.

We are asking every organization, every church, every social club
to include an item about the census in every agenla, if it i,- nothing
more than closing the meeting by saying we mu,,t be counted.

We also have a Project of newsletters ani informational material.
We are asking that organization, beginning January 1 include an
item about the census in every newsletter, in every meeting notice,
everything that they distribute. Some organization, are already doing
this.

We are dealing extensively with tihe Chicago Public Library and
also the public libraries in the other cities throughout the three States.

Mr. M1oore mentione(l the volunteer speaker project. That works
in two ways. Fiist of all, we have meetings periodically in our office
and throughout the community. Many I)eople are quite interested in
the census and they know it is important. We conduct 3-hour orienta-
tion sessions. We had one a few weeks ago in our office. We had about
80 people there, and many were from your district, Congresswoman
Collins, and many from your district, Congressman Stewart. We also
had a number of lispames at this session also.

We give them about a 3-hour orientation session on the census.
Then they have enough information on how we are going to take the
census and how community organizations can cooperate. They, then,
go out and speak to their constituencies, to their clubs, their social
groups, their schools, their PTA's, et cetera.

Another important project that we have is the minority media
project. Frankly, on any one of these projects I could keel) you for an

our or two, which I shall not do. I know you would be familiar with
the Media Women, which is a national organization of media women.
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They have a special tenu.l, project going. They have offered to help
us. We have been meeting j)eriol licalIv with them.

Ms. ('OLLINS. Wel, o1viouI.Iy yOl have been dloin a great deal
of work. I wa, jii-t intereteI in lretti1W oil the record tile types of
things that you have been Ioinl here in the cit" of' ('hicano.

Mir. Noore.
Mr. MoiOOF. I have thee i)roject-; and for the record I will submit

them to you so you can incluIe them in the i'ecorn.
MS. ('OulLIS. Thank you.
Let me ask you a question about these form,. M',. ('artwright male

the statement that the forms left a w hole lot to be Ie,-ire]. I know that
you didn't write the forms up anl I know that perhups none of you
here di i. I think we ha it a (iiscusion at tile callous meeting about these
very forms. First of all, how are thee form. ,uJpposedl to be i,,ec
There is one here that is 20 pages long.

Mr. IooRE. That is the long form.
Ms. CoLLINS. There tre a whole lot of numbers on there, what haveyou. There is one that is a shorter form. IHow are they going to be used

or distributed?
Mr. MOORE. Thle short forms are mailed to everyone. The short

form is incorporated into the long form portion. I think 80 percent of
the households will receive the short form and 20 percent of the house-
holds will receive the long forms.

MIs. COLLINS. Randomly distributed?
Mr. MOORE. Randomly distributed. There is t formula they use to

mail them out.
Do you have the breakdown?
Dr. FERBER. It is close to random for the entire country, with the

exception that for major lig cit ies it would be about 16 percent, I11i 6,
and it will come to one-twentieth of the entire populace. Because of
the need through general revenue sharing to get much better data in
cities under 2,500 than you would get from that small at sample size,
we are sampling one in every two houses. The national figure will be
about 80/20.

Ms. COLLINS. I looked at this form while we were sitting here, the
long one in particular, and I, too, find that there are a lot of things
there that I don't know the reasons why you would want an answer
to them for. It is not for me to question that. Maybe I should have
(lone that 2 or :3 months ago or a year ago at least. The one that I find
the most annoying is what time did you get home from work last
week. Who gives a (lamn. Why would something like that be on the
form? What would that do for revenue sharing or for funds coming into
the city of Chicago?

Mr. MOORE. I don't know the answer for that direct question, but
we do put out statistics on the journey to work, travel to work, to
give funds back to the city for transportation, RTA, those types of
things. They use those types of statistics to develop funding for the
cities for transportation to and from work.

NIs. COLLINS. I am not going to nit-pick over that, but I do think
there are some questions that would cause people to be disgusted.

You mentione(l-1 sure want to know about the specific things that
you have done in my district. What have you (lone at the grassroots
level in my district, which covers this area and goes straight back

Retained in the committee files.
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vest, and I think you are familiar with the district, would you just
walk me through some of those?

Mr. MOORE. OK.
NIs. COLLINS. How many meeting have you had and who has been

in contact and all that sort of stuff.
Mr. MOORE. I think the community sevice j)eople are l)rimarily

working in our projects. I will let her start out with that.
MIS. GRADY. Yes. We have community service specialists, as Mr.

Moore said, based in and gixen designated areas throughout the city.
On the West Side, the work that we have been (loing through the bot rd
of education includes the West Side. The work that we have been doing
with the Chicago Park District, of course, and other overall agencies.
Also Commissioner Cartwright has outposts locate(l in your area. We
are in touch with them and have been in touch with them.

For many years we have worked very cooperatively with a number
of organizations on the West Side, including Nancy ,Jefferson's or-
ganization, Midwest Community Council, several in the Garfield
area, the West Garfield area. I do not have my file with me, but we
have been working extensively in your congressional area.

Ms. COLLINS. Can you tell me how many meetings you have had
in there or (1o you know without your file; being here?

Ms. GRADY. I would rather not hazard a guess.
Ms. COLLINS. Would you submit that for the record, please?
Ms. GRADY. I would be very happy to. I can check on it. I have

myself attended some meeting's and in staff has held many, many
meetings in your area, some with the leadership and others with the
constituency of various organizations.

MIS. COLLINS. I consider myself as 1)art of the leadership and nobody
has met with me.

MNIs. GRADY. Some time ago I met with one of your assistants. I
believe that Mr. Moore has also.

Ms. COLLINS. I have talked with Mr. Moore extensively, yes.
Ms. GRADY. Yes.
MIs. COLLINS. I an talking about at the community level. This is

the only think I was concerned about.
Ms. GRADY. Yes.
Ms. COLLINS. I am trying to see just how far dowvn you have begun

to )enetrate. I am not trying to nit pick or anything. I am just trying
to get an overall view.

Ms. GRADY. Yes, I understand.
- MS. COLLINS. Mr. Moore, you were talking about the safety of the

enumerator and so forth. Can you walk ine through the process of what
the enumerator is going to tI o? When is the enumerator going out?
How many times he's going to have to go back? The kinds of questions
he's going to ask? ,Just the whole thing so [ can get it clear in my head
what the process is, going to be, if the form is not filled out ant mailed
back.

Mr. MOORE. First of all we are setting up a districtt office in your
community. That district office will employ 600 to 800 individuals.
There is a district manager that will be responsible for that office.
That district manager is a regular Bureau employee. On January 2 we
will open that district office and start staffing an(i bringing in supl)plies.
Then we will start training and working with the post office, trying
to update that correct mailing address register for getting the correct
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housing units. We will have an operation that we call a precanvass
operation, which is the first operation where the interviewer will go
into the district, looking for achlitional housing units; they will go
down alleys, streets, and buildings ani start allying the additional
housing units found. We know approximately how many housing
units that we are supposed to have in that area. We will sultract some
of the housing unit,; from the formula that we give them to work with
and see if they come up with the correct housing count. They will be
looking for housing. units.

Then -around Nfarch 28 we will mail out the questionnaire, to the
household. In the meantime the post office will (1o what we call casing
check. They will take each questionnaire and put it in a little pigeon-
hole to make sure that we have accounted for all of the housing units.
Those housin(, units that we have not accounted for, they will give
us a blue car(Y and we will add the new address to what we call our
address register. After the casing check and the questionnaires are
mailed out, then, we check them in. There is an office staff that will
check in all the questionnaires. Those questionnaires that we don't
get back, we will hire supervisory and interviewer staff to followup.
I'm skipping over a lot, of the operations, trying to be brief. We will be
hiring a crew leader and the crew leader will be responsible for hiring
interviewers, there will probably be 12 to 13 interviewers per crew
leader. They will train them to go out and collect the questionnaires
that we didn't get back.

Now, they will go to the household, introduce themselves, identify
themselves as a census taker and ask for the questionnaire. They will
bring the questionnaire back into what we call our field operation and
we will check that questionnaire in.

Now, we also at the same time have setup assistance centers in the
district, and those are centers where people walk in to obtain help in
filling out their questionnaires.

The questionnaires are supposed to be mailed back by April 1, but
they will continue coming in for about 6 to 8 weeks after that, for those
that haven't come back we hire the interviewers to work on piece rate.
We pay them for the number of pieces that they collect. When we get
near the end it's hard to keep interviewers on, because the piece rate
money, some of them claim, is not enough money. We review their
claim and, if necessary, we convert it to an hourly rate to keep them
going until we get all the questionnaires in.

Basically, that's how the interviewers are working.
Ms. COLLINS. I think Ms. Grady mentioned that when, I guess it's

right, when the enumerator goes out, none of this has (lone any good
and somebody goes out to the house to talk to the household, how
many visits will they make? Will they keep going back?

Mr. MOORE. They kee) going back until they have accounted for
every household. The vacancies, we'll go back on vacancies. We must
account for every household. We must get a questionnaire to represent
every housing unit in the city of Chicago.

Ms. COLLINS. I have just one final question, because I know the
time is going on.

I think you mentioned, in intro(lucing somebody sitting just behind
you, that they were in charge of answering the phone calls or the unit
that answers the phone calls that comes in. I am interested at this
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point in just briefly the kinds of calls. Are they coming in from orga-
nizations or have they yet begun to come in from John Q. Citizen?

Mr. MooRE. We have business calls that come in. ,e have the
students coming in. We have John Q. Public interested in data. That
phone rings all the time for people to hel) us interpret (lata for them.
It's really ringing quite a bit now, because we have all of the com-
munity service reps in the field helping people, if they have a proposal,
they have to know how to use census (lata to get some kind of funding.
They call into the office or they come down to use our library and that's
operated by Steve Lane, the gentleman who is responsible for data
users service program.

Ms. COLLINS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I have no
more questions.

Mr. GARCIA. I am going to be very brief because there are people
who are waiting to testify who have crow(led schedules themselves.

One of the areas that I would like very much is persons who in the
final analysis are going to be responsible whether, in fact, this city and
this State has a good count. You have had experience in 1960 or rather
in 1970. Just let me say this to you.

In 1970 that there was an undercount of the black community by
7.7 percent. I am not really buying that, because that figure was given
to us by the Bureau of the Census. I would venture to say it was prob-
ably double ihat. In 1960 you had an undercount of 8 percent, over a
10-year period what we really talked about was an improvement of
three-tenths of 1 percentage point, which is really unacceptable; 1980
means much more to us than 1960 and 1970 combined, because we now
are not only talking about political power we are talking about eco-
nomic power as it relates to our community.

I don't want to take away from any of those persons who are com-
munity reps, because I think that is an essential ingredient, because
for the first, time we are doing that. We have never done that before
and I believe that they are understaffed at this moment. I would hope
that, 1980, that there would be a count that is truly reflective of what
this country is all about.

Cities of America are burning. As far as I am concerned, the poor
come to the cities of America and if we don't get a good count here and
the population statistics are very clear, whether it be the city of Chi-
cago, the city of New York, or the city of Los Angeles, we are losing
people in cities. Cities are historically where those persons who come
to Congress or come to the State legislature who understand the needs
of the poor much more than the rural anl suburban legislator and we
are going to be losing them, so that the 1982 Congress and the 1982
legislatures are going t-) be faced with even more conservatism and
so I say to you, as a responsibility, to make sure that every person
is counted.

Now, I will leave a few questions with you and I really want them
answered, and I would hope that we would get those answers within
the next 2 weeks so we can place it into the record.

No. 1, on minority media I want an answer as to what the minority
media means to you in Chicago. If, in fact, the ad council is going to
be sufficient to reach minority people.

The other question I want like to ask, in terms of the number of
community reps that you have and are they all assigned to metro-
politan and urban areas or are they, as well, assigned to rural and
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suburban areas. You have three States within your juiris(liction as
regional director of the Census. If I understand you have Kentucky,
Indiana, and the State of Illinois. I really would! like to know the
number of people we have assigned there.

The last one is the question of the mailing list. I send out a mail ing
from a mailing list and I get almost 20 percent, 25 percent returned as
addressee unknown, addressee move. I want to know how updated
those mailing lists are or is it going to be a waste of the taxpayer's
money and time whether, in fact, we go into these communities.

Just let me make one suggestion to you. I would suggest you cheek
with the mayor and the city manager of the city of Baltimore on what
they have (lone. In the hearing that I had there with Congressman
Mitchell, it appears to me that the city of Baltimore, during the sum-mer of 1979, had young CETA workers going and checking, building
by building, throughout the city to verify the number of persons who
lived in those buildings. I want to know if the city of Chicago, of this
region, has (lone anything similar to that.

Lastly, we missed the boat in 1960, we missed the boat in 1970. If
we miss the boat in 1980 we are going to have to wait another 10
years and I really think that we cannot afford the luxury of even
waiting for 1 year.

So I urge you and I beg you, and I've got the experience in the short
year that I have been chairperson of this subcommittee, of hearing
testimony throughout the city. I really think that this area of the
country, in the city of Chicago there are so many minority folks that
11 yrru don't get a good count here in 1980, that I just don't see where
we are going to go as a viable force in terms of this country. So you
have a tremendous responsibility and I would hope that you respond
to those questions and I would hope that those questions not be taken
lightly and that those questions we returned to the counsel of this
subcommittee, Mike Ferrell, so that we can enter those answers into
the record.

Mr. STEWART. Thank you, Congressman.
Mr. GARCIA. I would like to add, if I may, before December 1.
Mr. STEWART. I would like to join you and I am sure Congress-

woman Collins would like to join you in the statement which was just
made here. It summarizes everything that we are concerned about.

Ms. COLLINS. I associate myself; yes.
Mr1'. STEWART. We wouldn't be here if we were not concerned and

we want to work with you who have the responsibility of telling us
where to go and how to go to get this job (lone.

I certainly appreciate your coming in hero and taking away from
your busy schedule to talk with us this morning.

Thank you, again.
Mr. MOORE. Thank you, Congressman. I want to, on my part, at

the outset I said I made a mistake in raising my hand, but I have not
been in this position as regional director of the Chicago region long,
but I assure you that I am going to (1o my daindest to make sure
that we gret a complete count.

Mr. STEWVART. Thank you.
At this time, we want to apologize to all of you for keeping you

here, but Professor lauser, professor emeritus of the Sociology De-
p artmeilt of the University of Chicago, and former Director of the

ureau of the Census, is here. We are going to hear from him now.
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We know he is trying to get away, too, but take whatever time that
you can give us.

STATEMENT OF PROFESSOR HAUSER, SOCIOLOGY DEPARTMENT,
UNIVERSITY 0' CHICAGO

Professor HAUSER. Thank you, Mir. Chairman, Congressman
Stewart, Congresswoman Collins, I am delighted to accept your
invitation to appear at this hearing.

May I say that I am, as has been indicate(], professor emeritus of
sociology, director emeritus of the Population Research ('enter at
the University of Chicago.

I think it. is relevant to point out also that I have had a hand in the
administration or conduct of five decennial censuses, beginning with
1930 and running through 1970. Probably not very many people in
the country can match that experience.

Much in the way of relevant information has already been presented
to the committee by the predecessor witnesses. I have just a few high-
light points to make and one recommendation on how to deal with the
situation that has not been made and has received relatively little
national attention.

With respect to, I think, relevant considerations, the actual under-
counts, so far as they can be ascertained by expert (lemogra)hers,
and this is a highly technical question, the determination or evalu-
ation of censuses to measure undercount or to measure failure and
response rates for specific gui(lelines is a highly technical matter that
I think is at least as technical as that confronted by nuclear engineers
or surgeons. It is beyond the ability of a layman to fcllow all the (e-
tailed mathematical and other types of calculations that aie involved.

The Census Bureau does have an expert staff and they are quite
competent to do all that the state of the art and science makes pos-
sible. For the record, I direct attention to the evaluation aid research
program publication of estimates of coverages of populationn by sex,
race, and age, demographic analysis, issued by the Burpau of the
Census through the Department of Commerce, which contains the
best estimates that the state of the art and science can provide.

Some of those figures that are drawn from this table, )articularly
table III on page 29 in this document, some of these statistics have
already been made available to the subcommittee this morning. I will
not bother to repeat them.

Second, I would like to direct the attention of the committee to a
report of the National Academy of Sciences called America's Un-
counted People. In this volume there are, I think, what I consider
the best that competent people in this country have been able to (1o,
to evaluate the census and t6, make recommendations for improve-
ment over the years to come.

There is a series of recommendations publishe(l as an appendix to
this report within the volume. I simply refer those for the record as
worthy of the attention of the Congress.

Finally, in response to the question of how important is it to get
an accurate count, I refer you to chapter 1 of this book which I have
written called Social Statistics in Use. This sets forth in some (letcil
the uses made of the census statistics not only by the Federal Gov-
ernment, for purposes of apportionment and for purposes of revenue
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sharing and other fiscal programs, as has been indicated, involving as
much as $50 million a year, but they refer also to something not yet
mentioned, certainly not this morning. The tremendous use made by
States and local governments of census statistics for both fiscal and
various administrative policy and programmatic utposes.

The second chapter in this book, which I have written, deals with
that, but I will not take the time to detail those. I will simply indicate
that testimony already presented this morning deals with, 1 think, the
more important elements, but by no means all the elements, that are
involved.

Now to get to what I think is the specific tyl)e of recommendations
as to what to (1o about it, prefaced by some observations based on my
own experience in five decennial censuses in the United States, and on
my awareness and )articipation in a number of cases of censuses taken
in other parts of the world, in Asia, Africa, Latin America, as well as
Europe.

There has never been a complete census of' humankind taken any-
where. There can l)robably never be a coml)lete count 100 percent of
everybody in any census taken in the United States. As it matter of
fact, the probability of getting a 100-percent count in the United
States is probably far below that which exists in many other countries.
The fundamental reason is the kind of personal freedom and liberty
that we, in this country, enjoy. There isn't a citizen of this country
that doesn't know, if he is so minded, that he can tell the Government
to go to hell. Not only that, he (toes it. There are vei few countries,
certainly not many, in which the emphasis on individual liberty and
the right, among other things, not to cooperate with your own gov-
ernment, is as widespread as it is in this country. 'Moreover, by reason
of a number of things that I shall not take the trouble to enumerate,
there are many situations in which people deliberately try to avoid
census taking. These reasons vary from l)ersonal considerations such
as avoiding debt collectors to worry about revealing an identity if
they are here as illegal aliens. Nobody knows how many illegal aliens
we have in this country, but estimates run from 4 to 12 million.
Obviously, under those pressures, there is no way that a census can
possibly enumerate people that don't want to be enumerated.

Now, having said this, what can be done? Let me say, with the
historical perspective that I possess, that the 1980 census has taken
more elaborate provisions to assure maximum count of any census
ever previously undertaken in the history of this country. There may
well be some improvement in the completeness of enumeration. It
would be absurd and naive, however, to assume that despite all of the
things that have been set forth, despite all of the improvements the
census has undertaken to put into the program, it would be naive to
expect a 100-percent count, then, in 1980, unless the United States
changes considerably in character and when we have the kind of provi-
sion that some countries have when nobody is permitted to leave their
house until after the census enumerator has been present. They put a
stamp on your hand to indicate you have been counted and you had
better not be caught without that stamp. That is a 100-percent census
complete count that is incompatible with the American conception of
individual liberty and freedom. I think this is a fact that should be
recognized. It has important implications, two of which I will briefly
refer to.
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One, it is a waste of taxpayer money for the Congress to continue
greatly to increase the appropriation for census purposes merely to try
to get that difference between a 97.5 and 100-percent complete count.
In my judgment, this is simply putting taxpayer money (lown the
sewer. It is not only impossi )le to get results comparable with the
inputs, but it is a waste of money because of our other ways of dealing
with the situation that will remedy the great need that exists, l)arti-
cularly when there is an undercount of minority peoples, blacks,
peoPle of Hispanic origins, or members of other races or ethnicities.

The second implication is that there is data at hand not now being
used which, while not perfect, can go a long way towards getting a more
equitable count and, therefore, a much more equitable allocation of
funds for minority groups. What is this method? Well, the Census Bu-
reau, in the publication to which I have already referred, has presented
what it regards on highly technical demographic statistical method-
ology the best estimate of un(lercount. There isn't a reason in the worl(l,
if the best, approximation to truth is desired, why those national esti-
mates of undercount cannot be used to correct the census reports in
every locality in this country. This could be (lone through a simple
allocation of that net undercount proportionate to the amount of
population, black, Hispanic origin, whatever, counted in the national
census.

To be suTo, this will not l)rovide at 100-percent accurate result, but
it will come a lot closer to the truth than what is now (lone when the
uncorrected data are use(l. lay I l)oint out that if such a(ljustments
were to be made in the public census data, or if the Bureau of the
Census itself were to make the adjustments an(l publish them in
independent volumes in(le)en(lent of the actual tabular results of the
census, that they could not be used in this fahion without changes in
the law.

I have had occasion in the past to serve as a witness, for example, in
a c(-mmunity in which a case was being made that the adjustments
should be made for the undercount of blacks and Hispanics becausethe community was losing tremendous amounts of money, in this
particular case, hundreds of thousands, l)erlia )s several million dollars,
by reason of a known undercount. Now we know there is an under-
count.

We know how much there is in the Nation as a whole. The judge
sitting in that case expi'esse(l sympathy for the community, but
pointed out that under the law he had no alternative but to deny the
claim and effort of change because the law now specifies for allocation
purposes the actual census count must be used.

I am quite aware that I have opened up a kind of a hornet's nest by
making such a l)roposal, yet I am convinced, both on technical grounds
and grounI of equity, that the information we now possess would
permit an adjustment of (ldata, community by community, in accord-
ance with the national estimates of undercount that actually prevail.
It, would come closer to the truth statistically and would provide
much more equity than is the case to(lay.

I shall close by referring to what is now going to be the population
of the Chicago area in the 1980 census. These (lata, may I say, have
been published by my colleagues at the University of Chicago through
the Community and Family Study Center. They do not obviate the
need for a census, let me point out. I still remember, members of the
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Illinois delegation, that there was a time in the past when someone
on the floor of the House argued that the country could save money
by not appropriating anything for censuses because you could get the
figures right out of the newspapers. This actually may happen an( I
couhl document that.

Of course, the newspapers got it from the census, but what I am
saying is that through demographic techniques, utilizing the current
data, much of which is made available either by the Bureau of the
Census or by the National Center of Health Statistics and HEW, we
can comle pretty. close to knowing what the censLs count will show,
then, for the Chicago netropolitan area and for the city of Chicago.

Let me point out, fir t of all, for the city of Chicago, that the census
is likely to report somi thing like 2,918,000 persons in the city, which
will represent appreciable reductions from the 1970 census results.
This is what is most interesting, most startling, and I think evidence
for following some kind of procedures which I have suggested for ad-
justing the underenumeration. The 1980 census is likely to report that
in the city of Chicago, there will be 1,201,000 blacks. There will be
348,000 persons of Hispanic origin. There will be only 1,369,000 per-
sons that in the publication to which I refer will be called the majority
white. That is, whites that are not of Hispanic origin. This means that
the 1980 census will show that so-called minority groups, blacks and
persons of Hispanic origin, will make up about 53 per cent of the
population of the city of Chicago. For the first time in the history of
the city of Chicago, the so-called majority white population of the
city will be a minority.

For Chicago to get its share of funds, not only from revenue sharing,
but from the multiplicity of other programs, or for Chicago to real)
the benefits of state programs, which also carry an allocation of funds,
as well as many other administrative types of things that are scheduled
according to population, is indicated in my book to which I referred
to earlier. I would say that it would be a miscarriage of equity and
justice. There would be, in my judgment, a complete failure to utilize
the statistics we have at hand by not making the adjustments based
on the national evaluation of the completeness of enumeration for the
minority groups.

I will repeat, and I will close with those words, it is naive, certainly
contrary to anything I can point to in my own experience in five
decennial censuses of the United States, .ind the census taking in
other parts of the world where I have had an active hand, Latin
America, Africa, Europe, Asia, it is naive to assume that we can
achieve a 100-percent count of everybody. It will not happen in 1980.
It will not happen for a long time to come as long as we are a demo-
cratic nation, for reasons to which I have already referred.

I think, therefore, it is a waste of taxpayer's money to increase
census appropriations in an effort to get that last 2 percent or fraction
of 1 percent if present procedures should improve.

The solution lies in using the results available through census
expertise, may I say evaluated also by the expertise throughout the
academic world, and including the National Academy of Sciences,
and other competent scientists and technicians. It is absurd that we
do not use the known correction factors to apply to the known under-
count of minority groups. Even though this will not give 100 percent
complete accuracy, it will come a lot closer to the truth than the pro-
cedures that are now being followed.

59-407 0 - 80 - S
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I have a final closing statement by pointing out that such adjust-
ments are possible, at least in science and in the technique. They are
not possible for use, however, until and unless the Congress changes
enough the law to require these adjustments for the various purposes
in which population is used as a factor in the allocation of funds or for
other administrative purposes.

Thank you very much.
Mr. STEWART. I think if anyone is considered an authority on the

census, you would be considered an authority. You have given us a
formula for overcoming the short count. It is your opinion that we
will never get 100 percent and I think you wouldn't find 2 people out
of 1,000 who would(l differ with you on that. You will never get 100
percent, but do you have any type of a formula, any type of an ap-
proach that we might use to increase this margin between'the counted
and uncounted.

I doubt very seriously that during your lifetime and mine that we
will come to a point %here Congress will not appropriate money to
make a head count. Now, we need to find some formula by which we
might be able to overcome that.

By your concept of using what you have to spread out this under-
count and come up With your equal distribution, I am interested in
getting that count a little bit above where we have it.

Professor HAUSER. Mr. Chairman or Congressman, the answer to
your question, I think, is pretty well contained in what the Census

ureau through experimental work beginning in 1950 has done as
reflected in the plans for the 1980 census. I am proud to say that
some of the basic research that was done resulting in the procedures
being used now in the 1980 census began in connection with the 1950
census, when as Acting Director I allocated $1 million of our census
appropriation for research purposes. May I say parenthetically that
there would be much more public goods if some funds were made
available for continued research than to continue to press for that
100-percent head count. That, I repeat, in my judgment, is a waste
of money unless you were to change the fundamental character of the
democratic character of this Nation.

As long as the individual citizen has the freedom he possesses, and
thank goodness he does, to, among other things, disagree with his
Government, and to refuse at those points to cooperate, and as long
as we have a system in which people have reason to fear even under
the best Fuarantees of privacy and confidentiality that their identities,
in their judgment, should remain unknown. They have the freedom
to do this just so long-I think it is just a waste of money to press to
get that last 1 percent compared with the adjustments that can be
made in the interests of equity and justice utilizing the knowledge we
already possess. It turns out that through demographic analysis and
through what is known as postenumerative surveys we can get a
pretty good measurement of the undercut at relatively little expense
to the taxpayer. We have been doing this now for several decades,
but we have still to utilize this knowledge we have gained in such a
manner as to adjust and correct the census data. I know of no way
that the Census Bureau is already employing in an effort to get that
100 percent, and I would argue if they tried more and spent more
money, in my judgment, that would be a waste of taxpayer funds.
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Mr. GARCIA. I am sorry that I missed some of your testimony, but
I had a call from my Washington office. I am delighted with that
portion which I heardbecause there is some what we call adjustment
legislation dealing specifically with that subject which you have been
addressing.

Have you had an opportunity to talk to the l)resent Director of the
Bureau of the Census rn terms of the testimony you have just presented
here?

Professor HAUSER. No. As a matter of fact, I spoke to him by
telephone, but on another matter only last week. I notified him, among
other things, that I was going to testify, but I d id not have the occasion
or opportunity to make this recommendation. In my juIgment, of
course, this is one of the things for which there is still time, that is,
if there was remedial legislation the adjustments could still be made,
in contrast with other types of things. It is now much too late to change
field procedures. It is much too late to change the questionnaire. I
think Congresswoman Collins has raised some quite interesting ques-
tions about it. I wish there was time to deal with it because I have
confronted this type of question over the years many times. It is much
too late to (1o anything about any of those things. It is not too late,
and it will continue not to be too late, to lass legislation to require
adjustments that, get you closer to the truth.

Mr. STEWART. iff I may, Mr. Chairman, just one further point.
What I would like to (to, if I may, is to set up a meeting with you,
Professor Hauser, and some of the people, dlemographers, inclu(ling
the Director of the Census, for some time in the very near future in
Washington.

Professor HAUSER. This would be quite possible, but may I
suggest that it had better be before December 6 when I leave r'or
Hawaii for 4 months, not as a loafer but where I will transfer my work
for 4 months.

Mr. STEWART. We will try and put the pieces together so that you
will be able to get to Wasbington before the sixth. I just think that it is
extremely important. I feel in the final analysis what we aire going to
have to (to to make certain that people are counte(l is go with the
a(ljustment. Without that it is going to be a virtual impossibility.

Professor HAUSER. My quick estimate, by the way, on my little
pocket calculator, Chicago might get the benefit of an extra 200,000
people, which might be the difference between losing or not losing aRepresentative.

Mr. STEWART. What about, money?
Professor HAUSER. It could mean millions of dollars in money.

Of course for New York the proportions would be even greater, the
amounts would be greater.

Mr. STEWART. Congresswoman.
Ms. COLLINS. I have no question, Mr. Chairman, but I have found!

your testimony to be excee(lingly informative. Thank you for coming
before us this morning, Dr. Hauser.

Mr. GARCIA. I really thank you for your )atience because I know
that your schedule is extremely tight. We are deeplyy (elighted you
are here.

Professor HAUSER. I am glad to do it. Unfortunately I (1o have a
tight schedule.
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Ms. COLLINS. Our next witness is Professor Ron Bailey of the
Illinois Council for Black Studies at Northwestern University.

STATEMENT OF PROF. RON BAILEY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
ILLINOIS COUNCIL FOR BLACK STUDIES, NORTHWESTERN
UNIVERSITY

Professor BAILEY. Thank you very much Congressman Garcia,
Congressman Stewart, Congresswoman Collins, my name is Ron
Bailey. I am an assistant professor of African American Studies and
Political Science at Northwestern University, and executive director
of the Illinois Council for Black Studies.

I would like to introduce a colleague of mine, Professor Gerald
McWorter, director of the Afro-American Studies program and Re-
search Center at the University of Illinois in Urbana, and the down-
state cochairman of the Illinois Council for Black Studies.

We appreciate the opportunity to share our views on the 1980 census
with you today and to share with you an announcement of what we
think is an exciting and timely major national confereuce-black
people and the 1980 Census-we are planning here in Chi(ago, wtich
will feature, among other people, the Director of the ('en tus Bureau
and others.

We have not received a letter that was inaile(l Cit to hearing Par-
ticipants, although we think the preparation for the conference touches
on many concerns that have been raised. There was a dificulty with
addresses. That was the difficulty. I should add that we are also pre-

aring several background papers and documents that we think would
e of interest to the committee. In fact, the entire proceedings of the

conference, which we hope to have published by February 1, 1980,
should be of interest.

At this time, I would like to introduce again Professor Gerald
McWorter, who will share with you a statement that we have pre-
pared on behalf of the Illinois Coutcil for Black Studies on black
people in the 1980 census.

Professor McWORTER. Thank you.
Mr. Chairperson and committee members. We are pleased to appear

before you today and present the views of the Illinois Council for
Black Studies on the issue of the black undercount in the 1980 census.
This is a vital issue and as a professional organization of black scholars
and students, we must take a clear public stand on what represents
the best interests of black people on the census.

We are aware of the efforts of this committee to raise the under-
count issue before the public. We are also aware that the Census
Bureau in Washington has itself been doing considerable work on the
measurement of the undercount. As we move toward the 1980 census,
we would like to express our articularr )leasure at the coo erative
efforts of the census official responsible for Illinois, Regional Director
Stanley D. Moore.

I might say that this is really an understatement because as far as
the people we work with in black studies throughout the State, Stan
has been very cooperative and very helpful in helping us to mobilize
our ranks to better understand what is going on.

Our responsibility is to support everything positive lone by this
committee and by the Census Bureau. But we must not stop with
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this type of support. We must say at the outset that we are here as
scholars of the black experience as well as advocators of far-reaching
basic social change. So our bottom line is to connect our fight against
a bad and unjust census with our fight for black liberation.

What is the Illinois Council for Black Studies? Black enrollment in
Illinois higher education is the third highest State total in the country
with over 85,000 black students. The Illinois Council for Black Studies
was founded at the University of Illinois. Planning for a statewide
organization in black studies took definite shape at the Symposium
on Academic Excellence and Social Responsibility in Black Studies
held at the University of Illinois, Chicago Circle, on February 29,
1979, in honor of the 110th anniversary of the birth of Dr. W. E. B.
DuBois, the reriowne(l Afro-American scholar activist. The founding
conference took place this past October at the Urbana campus of the
University of Illinois. At the present time we have the support and
participation of 19 different schools enrolling almost 35,000 black
students. These 19 schools are public, private, and Catholic institu-
tions, both 2-year community colleges and 4-year universities through-
out the State of Illinois.

How do we view the census black undercount? Ever since the U.S.
Constitution mandated that a census be taken there has been a problem
with the undercount. But this has not been entirely a passing problem
of statistical research technique or of the bureaucratic organization
of a Census Bureau. When it came to black people , it began as a matter
of legal principle. This section of the Constitution reads as follows:

Representatives and direct taxes shall be apportioned among the several
States which may include within this union according to their respective members,
which shall be determined by adding to the waole number of free persons, inclid-
ing those bound to Service for a Term of Year;, and excluding Indians not taxed,
three-fifths of all other persons.

"Other persons" in this context is a 1787 way of saying black people
who were slaves and numbered almos- 1 million. If we can say that
this represents an official undercount ft. - economic and political reasons,
then we have a clear point of departure. For almost 200 years the
Census Bureau has lied about the statistics regarding the black
community.

Although demographers and Government officials have consistently
been in the heat of controversy regarding the overall quality of the
decennial census, most agree that blacks have been the most under-
counted group in the history of the census. This includes the famous
1870 census. The Census Bureau itself wrote, and I quote:

As regards the Negro element, therefore, the deficiencies of the census of 1870
were so considerable and with respect to different localities so indeterminable as
practically to destroy the significance of the data.

On the other end of the historical continuum the overall under-
count rates appear to be going down, especially since 1940. But for
certain segments of the black population in urban areas, the under-
count rates have been going in the opposite direction. The major
point here is that for black males between the ages of 20 to 39 there is
an apparent decline in census accuracy. The undercount of this
segment of the black community is increasing.

In general, while we know that the census is wrong, we really don't
know how wrong. What we can do is reach some kind of scientific
and governmental consensus on an estimate of the error as long as we
accept the data sources used to correct the census.
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Ms. COLLINS. I don't want to interrupt you, but because we have
several other witnesses to get to, we woull ask that you summarize
the remainder of your statement rather than reading it in detail, with
the understanding that your entire statement will be made a part of
the official record. (See p. 58.4

Professor MCWORTER. OK. Sure.
In general, while we know that the census is wrong, we really don't

know how wrong. The fact is that the estimate of the error that Pro-
fessor Hauser, for example, spoke about earlier, is based upon data
generated by other Government agencies, which are also subject to
error. For example, vital statistics. Even in the past the Selective
Service data has been used, et cetera.

The point is that statistically and governmentally we might arrive
at a consensus on the estimate of the error. Politically we believe
there will never be a consensus on statistically fact as long as statistics
reflect the world in which blacks are the downtrodden poor and in
which middle class whites run the census, are the demographers, and
can really determine reality, whether they use the census or not.

We would refer to the calculations made by the National Urban
League for some indication of just how the census undercount im-
pacted upon blacks in the metropolitan areas particularly.

Now, in terms of what we recommend, we really came here today
to make two specific recommendations. One, we support the manda-
tory use of the revised populationn estimate, which includes the under-
count for the reapportionment of political districts and the appro-
priation of Federal, State, and local government moneys. In this
sense, we have come with a prepared statement that, in effect sul)ports
the same .proposal that Professor Iauser just made. We believe that
this is something that must be mandated by law in which there is a
time specification. As we understand it, there will be efforts made by
the census in 1985, as well as in 1995, so that there will be new data
generated. We think that has to be taken into consideration as well.

The secon(I point, we believe that the black community is in some
sense, at least on a1 statistical an( scientific front, defenseless. This
means that the mathematical an( statistical knowledIge among the
masses of people is low. This is not only true for black )eople, it is
true for everybody, and that the systematic training of black )rofes-
sionals in this area is virtually nonexistent. We want, therefore, and
we (leman(d, that the Government provi(le a sum of $3 million to
train 100 black demographers by 1985 who can participate in the
analysis and evaluation of the data from the 1980 census. The point
here is this: If you look at the report from the National Academy of
Sciences or you look at the major population centers that generate
the statistics I am talking bout, these are population centers that
are funded by Feleral moneys. If you talk about Princeton, the
University of Wisconsin, places like that, you will not find many
minority (lemograpqhers, you will not fin(I any black demographers
there, but you (o find people relying upon the statistical projections
of these people to define reality for us. We agree very much that if
indeed democracyy is cherishcl then there must be democraticc partici-
pation of tll minorities on the scientific end of things, as well as
hearings, which, in point of fact, just as the analysis en(ls up in
victims screaming out an(l making oral claims, but not having access
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to the scientific technique and tools and resources to at least have
voices heard in those contexts as well.

The last, point is that we didn't come here simply to make these
demands as our own )Oilnt of moral outrage with this business, but
rather we came also to point out that we are loing something about
this question of the black undercount in the 1980 census. We have
organized a national conference, which will take place here in Chicago
on November 30 and December 1 at the ('enter for (Continuing
Education at the University of Chicago, and have material describingg
that here for distribution and inclusion in the record.

I might add that Congressman Bennie Stewart has agreed to par-
ticipate in this. We have asked Congressman Cardiss Collins, whom
we hope will agree to )articipate in the conference. And Mr. Barabba,
the head of the Census Bureau, will be here, as well as Ms. McKinney,
who is head of the ethnic and racial statistics section of the National
Bureau of the Census, as well as black professionals from a number of
different universities throughout the c, untry.

I might also add that we will have rel, resentatives of other minority
nationalities at this conference who tire also members of the advisory
committees to the Bureau of the Census. While we are specifically
concerned with the black unlercount, we unlerstan( the need to
work collectively with Hispanics and Asians and others.

Certainly we appreciate the opl)portunity to present this material.
Ms. COLLINS. Thank you very much for a very rounded and

thoughtfully constructed statement.
Mr. GARCIA. I have before me a study by, I guess, your group?
Professor MCWORTER. The proposal for the conference, yes.
Mr. GARCIA. If you would like, with your permission, we can accept

the entire study for our record as it pertains to this hearing here in
Chicago. If you would like for that to be done, it. can be done.

Professor McWORTER. We would appreciate that very much.'
Mr. GARCIA. I would just like to add, if I may, I believe what you

say is accurate and I believe it is correct. and I want to commend you,
first of all, for having the national conference.

In 1960 and 1970, those years which I can relate to specifically as a
person involved in the political process, we had always been short-
changed. I believe the difference between 1979 and 1959 and 1969 is
that this year we are talking about it on a national level. It is becoming
increasingly important to us in the minority community to understand
the significance and the importance of what the census is all about.

I wasn't kidding when I referred to the members of the Bureau of
the Census and said that, really, if we don't. get on the boat, you know,
I feel like we are on a deserted island, shipwrecked on an island, and
there is only one boat that is going to come by and it is going to come
by in 1980 and if we don't get on that boat, we are going to be on that
deserted island for the next 10 years.

If there is any waty that this subcommittee, as long as I am chair-
man, can be of any help in terms of promoting the census, in terms of
making sure that, there is continuity, that is one of the basic problems
we have had, I think Ms. Collins will agree with me that over the past
10 or past 8 Congresses there has always been a new chairperson of
the Census Subcomittee and nobody has ever monitored the Census
Bureau, nobody. One of the promises that I will make is that I will, as

Retained In subcommittee files.
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long as I am a Member of Congress and as long as I am chairperson of
this subcommittee, that I want to stay as the chairperson for this
subcommittee over the next two or three terms if the people of my
district reelect me. We need to start now in 1982, 1984 to do the work

i-eparing for the 1990 census. It cannot be (lone a year or two before-
and. Then, I believe, that continuing dialog between your organiza-

tion here in the Midwest and in Chicago and in other organizations
will start to have the input that is going to make 1990 better in terms
of making certain that we have the kind of count that is essential for
us as participants in this country. I welcome what you have said. I
join with you in whatever way this subcommittee can be of any help
through the assistance of both Congressman Stewart and Congress-
woman Collins.

Ms. COLLINS. I was very interested in your comments about, having
blacks, if you will, up front in some of the scientific programs of the
census, et cetera. I think this is vital. It is sort of like running the
National Security Council where we have trouble with Third World
people and we don't have anybody speaking French or Chinese, et
cetera. I think that certainly that is a recommendation that I hope
the people who are with the census here concur in and will do some-
thing %out.

I just have one quick point to make and that is that I looked at the
chart in Commerce News. This is dated August 1, 1979. I looked this
over and happened to see Illinois and I thought that this was cer-
tainly something that would interest you. In the First Congressional
District, the percentage lost in population from 1970 to 1978 is 15.2
percent. In the second, it is -6.5. In the seventh, which is my district,
it is minus 13.1. In the eighth, it is minus 18.1. This is a clear indica-
tion that these four districts in which the vast majority of Chicago's
minorities live have had the largest increases, with the exception of
a couple of districts downstate, of any district in the entire State of
Illinois. This is a factor, for whatever reason it was created, that is
one perhaps you will address in your conference that is coming up at
the center at the end of this month and the 1st of December.

I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.
Professor MCWORTER. If we could, then, just make a couple of

points in response, the point about the black demographers was not
a criticism of the inability of the Census to hire existing black de-
mographers. It more was an appeal to you as Members of Congress to
lean on the National Science Foundation and/or to write specific
legislation for the training of minority scientific personnel. It is not
only true in terms of demographers, it is generally true in the scientific
and technical fields. If the Bureau wouldn't hire the existing black
demographers, it would be a slightly different problem. Right now
we are talking about the actual training of black demographers.

Ms. COLLINS. I am glad you clarified that.
Professor BAILEY. I would just like to add along those lines that

this point about the postenumeration adjustment is something that
more attention needs to be given to because it is not a question of not
having an inaccurate count. It is clear there is going to be one: It is
not a question of the Cersus Bureau having the capacity to manage
the count and to adjust the figures: It is a question of policymakers
saying to the Office of Man agement and Budget, to the various Federal
agencies, that this adjusted figure has to be used in your appropriation
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of funds. So that point needs to be brought out much clearer in a lot
of the discussions because people tire not aware that there is a debate
going on about using this adjusted figure and most of the discussion
is around, ts Dr. Hauser sail, trying to reduce this 2.5 percent
undercount.

We think that while that is an important issue, the most. significant
issue is not to penalize minority coninities, black andi Iispanic
communities, for a technical process that they don't control. We think
that this could be spoken to more effectively by paying attention to
this 1)ostemnumerat ion adjustment.

Mr. GARCIA. Any help that you can give us, or any information
that you come across over the next several months, will you make
sure that you get it to the subcommittee and we will make sure it gets
into the proper hands.

Ms. COLLINS. Thank you very much for your testimony.
Is Mis. Patricia Vidri present?
Also, would Mr. Richard Culhauser come forward at this time to

testify for us?
Ms. Vidri, would you identify who is with you, please.
Ms. VIDRI. This is Mr Frank Gagliardi, of the De)artment of

Planning. I have a statement here from Mayor Byrne that I wouNhl
like to read to you.

STATEMENT OF PATRICIA VIDRI

MS. VIDRI. A government is nothing if it fails to meet and serve the
people it represents.

Even the most resourceful, disciplined, and (iligent of governments
would be hard pressed to serve its people if its population statistics
are unknown quantities.

In 1970, the Bureau of the Census estimated that it failed to count
some 5.3 million people. The ramifications of that error are staggering
in their complexity and their magnitude. They are felt even now as we
prepare for another census. We are joined together in our resolve that.
there must be no repeat of the errors of 1970.

Some $50 billion and 107 )rograns, and even the reapl)portionment
of our congressional districts, the very fiber of this system and its
freedom, hinge on our decisions. Already we have been told that in
1985 the l)roblems of the 1980 census will be found and corrected. Al-
ready we have been told not to worry, but we say we cannot wait
another 5 years. We cannot wait and the people of this city to whom
a fair count means fair and equal opportunity will not wait. We have
known more l)eople have been out there, but we have lacked the
means to get to them. Fortunately we now have the opportunity to
reach them. A fair count need not be impossible, and error need not
be inevitable.

Every agency in this c ty will be l)lacedl at the lisposal of the Census
Bureau in this enormous and formidable task. All offices in the city's
neighborhood service centers, for example, will be cleared for use by
census workers. The city department of planning and] community
develol)ment will participate in a local review program (luring the
census. In addition, we are in the process of forming a complete count
commission comt)ose(l of community, ethnic, anl business leaders to
to draw on the experience of a few to help the many. The commission
will be formulated by the office of the MaPyor.
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We will not evade the issues or shortcut the problems involved in
the census count. Instead we will meet these problemss and we expect
the Government to meet them as well.

You have asked us for suggestions at this time and we offer them
now in the five areas that we feel still need improvement.

First, in a city such as Chicago where each of eight languages are
spoken by 10,000 people or more, the census forms should be available
in all appropriate languages. To that end, the Census Bureall should
act as a clearinghouse for the exchange of foreign language information
between cities.

Second, the Bureau should make every effort to hire more minority
and bilingual enumerators in potential l)roblem areas. The enumera-
tors should be encouraged to go in person to each home.

Third, the local review program, as it is currently envisioned, allows
only 10 (lays for city officials to review block estimates. In Chicaoo we
have 18,000 blocks with residential housing and 10 working days is
not enough. An extension of 20 to 40 (lays should be provi(le(d. Also,
the Bureau should launch a vigorous bilingual advertising campaign
that will stress the confidentiality of census statistics.

Undocumented workers, for example, may l)e reluctant to partici-
pate in the census for fear of reprisal.

Finally, the Bureau should take advantage of administrative dlata
readily available to spot check census estimates. The city will cooperate
in sup p lying such data.

In Chicago, as in cities across the Nation, we are not asking for
more, but we want no less than we deserve, a fair count.

Ms. COLLINS. Thank you.
Mr. GARCIA. I believe we have another speaker first.
Ms. COLLINS. All right.
Mr. Culhauser.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD CULHAUSER

Mr. CULHAUSER. Mr. Chairman, other members of the committee,
I would like to describe to you some of the reasons why an accurate
census and population count is important to the State of Illinois.

The counting each decade of the Nation's people is no simple task.
In the lasi census, as subsequent surveys showed, a substantial number
of persons in Illinois were not counted. Now, under-reporting in
Illinois has at least three major implications. First, there is a sys-
tematic under-reporting of important population subgroups, the
elderly, low income, blacks, and other minorities. To the extent
under-reporting of these and other groups occurs, an accurate assess-
ment of Illinois human resources is not possible.

This, in turn, means that various problems facing business and
Government may be inadequately (lefine(I and economic and social
policies misdirected.

Second, under-reported misdirects Federal funds which are dis-
tributed by formula to Illinois and other States based on the level
of the population count within each State.

Third, under-reporting affects various legislatively enacted formulas
which use census populationn counts to distribute State funds to local
governments. This is the point that Dr. Ilauser was making.
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What has been Illinois' experience with under-reporting? The
Bureau of the Census estimated that for the Nation as a whole about
2.5 percent of the population was not reporte(l in 1970. In Illinois the
un(lercount estimated at 1.9 percent of the l)opulatioi 'n other words,
the followup survey showed that tile level, the Ipv ,rtion of the
under-reporting in Illinois was less than that of the Nation as a whole.

Two speakers have proposed that the information in the lollowup
survey be added back or in some way incorporate(l into the census
as a whole to adjust the count for under-reporting. I would like to
suggest to you that the winners and losers from a parochial viewpoint,
from an Illinois viewpoint, are not at all clear. For example, those
Federal funding formulas, and there are a)out 107 of them, 42 of
which use total population in the State to allocate funds, usually do
so on the basis of the ratio of Illinois to the total population. An
example would be reimbursement under the title XX program.

Illinois' share of the roughly $2.5 billion Federal allocation is a
l)roportion based on total )olulation and we receive about $130,
million to $140 million under that program.

Now, if the under-reI)orting were added lack per the 1970 census
results, 1.9 percent Illinois versus the larger proportion for the national
result of about 2.5 percent, Illinois share of the population would be
less than the official census data reports. In that way, then, the
amount of title XX money coming to the State of Illinois would be
less per that adjustment than had the adjustment not occurred.

There are many (ifferent programs, 107; each incorpo.iates census
information in a different way. So what I am su,,gesting to you is,
especially to the Illinois Congresspersons, that there can be a (liffer-
ential impact, program by p rogram, depending on what is incorporate,
how specific census data is incorporated and in what specific way it is
used in distribution formulas.

Since 1970, there has been a major influx of persons into the United
States commonly called illegal aliens. Immigration and Naturaliza-
tion Service officials have reportedI estimates which indicate that
there may be up to 3 to 5 million such personss in the United States.
Earlier Dr. Hauser Ieported 5 to 12 million. The estimates of Illinois
illegal alien )opulation range between 300,000 and 450,000. These data
remain really rough estimates. If correct, the estimates reveal that
Illinois has a greater share of illegal aliens in relation to population,
almost 4 percent, than has the Nation as a whole, roughly 2 percent.

Since the Census Bureau intends to inclu(le illegal aliens in their
1980 undercount followup survey, the percentage of underreporting
in Illinois (0oul jump above that for the Nation as a whole. Let me
just try an(d illustrate that. If in 1970 there was underreporting in
Illinois of roughly 2 percent-I think the (orrect figure is 1.9 percent,
but using the 2 percent figure-that would mean about 225,000 per-
sons were not counted. If tile illegal aliens tire represented by 300,000,
400,000, 500,000 persons in the State and if there were a way to in-
clude those person, in the followup survey, then the percentage of
underreporting in Illinois would jump above, likely, that for the
Nation as a whole.

Let me just review a couple of cases heree census data impacts the
State of Illinois--107 Federal programs, they allocate $50 to $60
billion each year lo the States and the allocation is based on some
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measure of population or other demographic characteristics, and just
four programs, title XX, that is reimbursement for social serviCes,
the ('ETA program, Federal revenue sharing, and aid to e(lication,
distribute about $20 billion nationally and about $700 million to
Illinois. What. will hap en to those programs and those funding levels
after the 1980 census (ata is incorporated? The Illinois population to
be reported in the 1980 census is expected to be at about tho same level
as was reported in 1970. Since the population of the Nation as a whole
has increased faster than the population in Illinois, Federal programs
which distribute grants to Illinois on the basis of population will
allocate at lower levels after the 1980 census data becomes available.
In other words, in terms of dollars and cents, Illinois is likely to be a
big loser in many of the Federal programs. This impact alone co11
cause sharp reductions in Federai funding to Illinois and reductions in
government service at a time when the Nation's economy will still be
weak, Illinois unemployment high. anl the State's overall financial
condition possibly strained by the effects of slower growth in the
economy.

Just as the Federal Government uses population counts to distri-
bute Federal funds to the States, indi'.vi(lual States use that same
information to make funds available to local governments throughout
the State, counties, townships, school districts, municipalities.

Three examples in Illinois, the State has at revenue sharing program
with local governments. One-twelfth of our State income taxes are
distributed back to local governments on the basis solely of popula-
tion. Funding for local roads is in part financed by State distribution,
which is also based or nol)ulation. Finally, school aid in Illinois is
distributed to the 1 ,0C efferentt school districts again partially basee]
on a number of low-income families. These examples hell) to illustrate
how local government in Illinois is (lepen(lent upon accurate l)ol)ula-
tion counts as is the State as a whole with respect to Federal funds.

In Illinois for a coml)lete and accurate count of the number of
persons in the State at the time of the upcoming census, it will be
necessary, I believe, to count as well the number of illegal aliens.
The growth in the number of such persons over the last (ecade is one
of the most important changes in the demographic structure of the
State since 1970.

Again from the Illinois perspective, if adding the results of the
followup survey back to the census data in order to derive an esti-
mate of the total population to be used in the Federal allocation
formulas from the Illinois l)ersl)ective would be important, I think,
to have such persons included in the count.

In closing, I would just like to say that, with respect to this point,
that there are many differentt purposes for census data. One is political
representation. I mentioned a couple. The State distributes Federal
funds to local governments. The Federal Government, in turn, (lis-
tributes funds to both local governments and to State governments.
Underreporting affects each oi those in a different way. I think it
would be very difficult to come to a conclusion as to who would win,
who would lose, because in most cases winners and losers are (teter-
mined on the basis of the )rol)ortion of one State to the total. If in
underreporting the levels are added back for all of the States, then it
depends U)On the amount of underreporting, as far as the final alloca-
tion of funds is concerned.

Thank you.
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NI' COLLINS. Thank you.
Mr. Garcia.
Mr. (ARCIA. One question, aInd one of the reasons why we i,ked

both of you to come up, as I sai,[ before, and I don't know if you hear(d
that testimony about the city of' Baltimore, the city of Baltimore is
playing a very active role in the census. I would just hope tha1t nn
also be (lone here in the city of ('hicago, st the Statite of NMaryland I i,
doing within the State. I)o you haove any programs that you know of
specifically in which the State i. part icipat ing or the City is partici-
lM)tinl in directly in term-; of the census and nothing else?

Mi. ('ULHAUSER. We are not at the StaLte level concerned with the
census procedui'es. One of' the thin s we are concerneI with, atni pr-
ticularly from the viewpoint of' my office, the bureau of the budget, is
to try and understand the impact of changes s in l)opulation in 1980 is
it would work through each of the.,e 107 different formults. ()e of the
tasks that we are undertaking is to identify those formulas that have
the largest dollar impact in trying to assimilitte on a comlpter-based
apl)roa('h the (lifforent out('ome.; that we might expect for the antici-
pate(d changes. !n )ur office of' planning, wve have population projec-
tions so we have a feel for what the statistics might show for the new
census.

Mr. GARCIA. Soe States have gone to their own State legiiatule,
to get apl)ropriations, perhaps al)l)rolriations voted on in the )ast,
so that State would have their own money, so to speak, to place into
the census as they saw fit.

Mr. GARCIA. I would hope, While you have sor- time, that that
would be something for you to think about.Ms. VIorU. The city of Chicago is in the process of formin, a com-
plete count commission, which will be coordlinatedl by the office of the
mayor. What we want to do is gVet representatives from different
businesses here in Chicago, different community organizations, reli-
gious grrnlps maybe, utility ('ompanies, bi:, bu-;iness, small business, to
be there.

Mls. ('OLLINS. Nit'. StewaIrt.
NMtr. STEWAiT. We wanl1t to thank you for coming. Your testimony

has been most helpful.
Ms. COLLINs. I have one question that I don't know the answer to.

Has the city or does the city budget any money or is it given any money
by the Census Bureau or some funds to do anything as far as adver-
tising, et ceteln? I notice tlt you mention in your statement or the
city's statement mentions that more ivertising should be (lone, et
cetera. How does the money thing work out on that'?

'Mr. GAGLIARDI. My name is Frank Gagliardi. I am with the City
of' Chicago Planning department .

We requested money from our Yea r Five comlnunity development
draft application be allocated for the purpose of printing extra
materials, more than likely in a variety of languages, to advertise the
census.

To answer the question of Congressman Garcia, we are in the
process of preparing estimates of housing units based on administrative
data from the power an( light company, the gas company and from
the Cook County Assessors Office on the number of housing units in
every census block in the city of Chicago. We will use these estimates
and compare them against the mailing list, estimates the Census
Bureau has in our precensus review process as part of our local review
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program. Subsequent to the census, we will have available some esti-
mates of population by census checks. We are preparing those esti-
mates based on )ublic school enrollment lata, statistics information
and any other administrative data that we can get our hands on that
would be useful in that effort. We will review the )reliminary popu-
lation figures that the Census Bureau sends us subsequent to April
against our estimates an(l attempt to hel) minimize the undercount.

Ms. COLLINS. I have just one final question. I don't know if it has
been (lone or if it, has been thought about, but somebody has given
me the suggestion, I don't claim ownership for this, but I think it is
a (lam good idea, have the city approach businessmen to do more.
They said to me that large retailers and utilities are always looking
for inserts and mailers to go into their bills and what have you.
Has this been (lone as far as you know?

Mr. GAGLIARDI. There is no (loubt that this will be (iscussed in
the meetings. We are aware of the effort that the telephone company
is involved in at the national level with the Census Bureau to include
a mailing with their bills for the months of February and March.
Something similar to that activity will more than likely be enter-
tained by various businesses in Illinois.

MS. COLLINS. Fine. Thank you very much.
We thank you all for apl)earing before us.
I have no questions for you, Mr. Culhauser.
Our next panel will consist of Mr. Philip Ayala, Mr. Frank J.

Williams, and Nancy Jefferson or her representative.
I don't see- Nancy.
Also Mr. Leonard Walentynowicz.

STATEMENT OF PHILIP AYALA, DIRECTOR OF CENTRE DE LA
CAUSA, CHICAGO

Mr. AYALA. Distinguished congressional panel, I just want to take
time to thank Congressman Garcia and Congresswoman Collins for
the invitation to speak to this subcommittee.

I am not here only to give testimony, but I am here to state that
we, Centro de la Causa, of which I am the executive director, have
done our own homework to find out the census count of the Latino
population, not, only for the Little Village and Pilsen community
areas, but for the Chicago area.

I would like to start off with a critique of the census methodology.
This report' is based upon an analyses of published census data for

the Spanish language population in the Little Village and Pilsen area
in Chicago. We will comment upon some of the limitations of this
data, the methodology deficiencies associated with collection and
presentation of census data.

In any systematic data collection process such as the decennial
census we may accept as a general principle that the definition of the
subject and the procedures followed in collecting appropriate infor-
mation will place limits upon our possible knowledge of that subject.
Applying this principle to the case at hand, the question becomes
what are the boundaries of the Spanish heritage population accord-
ing to the U.S. Census Bureau, and how (foes it gather reliable de-
scriptive information about this population.

I Retained In subcommittee flies.
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Let us begin with the problem of definition. Historically the Census
Bureau has relied upon a variety of indicators that tire intended to
measure the size and attributes of the Spanish heritage population
of the United States. Among these indicators are one, foreign birth
in one of the Spanish-speaking countries of the world ; two, native
birth, if one or both parents was born in a Spanish-speaking country;
three, Spanish reported as one's mother tongue; four, Spanish sur-
name; five, self-identification as of Spanish origin.

Depending on the researcher's choice of an appropriate indicator or
definition, a differentt collectivity will be identified as the Spanish
heritage population. For example, all persons with a Spanish surname
would not, be identified by a question determining p)arentage, nor
would all who report Spanish as their mother tongue be found in a
study of the Spanish surname population. The greatest discrepancy
between any pair or combination of indicators occurs when the
Spanish heritage population is located by asking one to identify his
origin or descent. Since this identification may be claimed by both
those with a close or distant historical connection with a Spanish
culture, the enumeration of the Spanish origin po pulation at the
national level is usually greater than that for any other identifier.

As a consequence of the definitional disagreement over the nature of
the Spanish heritage population, the researcher encounters the prob-
lem of resolving conflicts from among apparently equal objective
descriptions of the characteristics of this population. As an illustra-
tion, a recent study of the Spanish origin in South Bend, Ind., re-
vealed that their median income was over $2,000 lower than that
reported for the Spanish language in South Bend in the 1970 census.
This differential, l)erhaps, was in part the result of using two different
motions of what constituted the Spanish heritage population. The
point to be emphasized from this illustration is that different charac-
teristics, that is income level, educational achievement, rate of un-
employment, undoubte(lly will be discovered if definitions of the sub-
ject, under investigation are at variance.

This issue has been recently investigated and the results of the
study are described in a Census Bureau publication. It was reported
in a comparison of two identifiers, Spanish surname and Spanish
origin, that outside the Southwest a significant difference exists
between the two collectives identified. Unfortunately this report does
not compare the socioeconomic difference between these two groups
outside the Southwest, although it does compare these differences
within the Southwest and finds them insignificant. On the basis of our
previous research, we would suspect that in the Midwest these differ-
ences could be considerable.

The Mexican American undercount in California is an illustration.
The findings of the Mexican American Population Commission of
California are of interest in regard to the problem of inaccurate census
estimates. In i971 the U.S. Census Bureau reported that, the Spanish
surname l)opulation of California totaled 2 million. Shortly afterward
the Mexican American Population Commission of California, subse-
quent to an independent study, submitted evidence that at least
3,140,000 Spanish surnamed resided in California in 1970. On the
initiative of this commission, legal action against the U.S. Census
Bureau was instituted, with the result being that in December 1971
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the U.S. Census Bureau confirmed that California had a population of
at least 3 million Spanish Americans. An error of this magnitude would
have the obvious deleterious effect that, based upon the original
population estimate, any governmental programs directed toward
California Spanish Americans would preclude just consideration, at
least relative to more accurately enumerate(d groul)s. Interestingly, in
one of the U.S. Census Bureau's major publications for use by demog-
raphers, it is admitted that good statistics are unavailable for ethnic
groups who stand in need of social programs. It is acknowledged
further that the undercount for Mexican Americans may be as great as
for blacks.

The underrmumeration of the S)anish heritage population remains
problematic for the Census Bureau because of insufficient data and
will likely remain so until the next census or until research of the sort
rep orted in California serves to encourage any necessary revisions of
ofcial estimates.

The census undercounts anl resultant inaccurate socioeconomic
estimates are not simply the consequence of vague, inconsistent or
inappropriate definitions of Spanish heritage )ol)ulation, there is also
the problem of sampling. In the last, questions regarding Spanish
language use and Spanish origin or descent appeared only on the
Census Bureau sam pe s5 percentt or 15 percent-which iml)aired the
quality of data use( Ifor estimates.

Another problem, one of articularr relevance to Little Village and
Pilsen areas of Chicago, is that census cross-checks show that enumera-
tion is less complete in large cities, especially where minorities are
concentrated.

I think the need for bilingual and bicultural census personnel is
important and it must be, I think, I feel, a must. It's not only, "'So
how many community service specialists aire here in the region?"
I think it's part of the subcommittee-I could answer that, there are
only two. This committee has to-I don't want to use the word

ressure, but if I must-have that pressure filter (town. We need more
ilingual and bicultural census takers.
The documentation of the undocumente(I is very important, but as

important as the protection of his rights, for the most part the people
who are taxed, taxation without representation. I think working with
the State and knowing somewhat what they are doing, I think the
person who spoke from this State was very accurate in stating,"We're
not concerned," because we had not been concerned. I think not only
the State, but. local government has to develop plans and unless this
committee reflects that or pressures that, gentlemen, as I stand here
and be involved with city and State government for 12 years, they
are not going to (1o it.

Mr. GARCIA. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF DIANNE McCOLLOUGH

MS. MCCOLLOUGH. My name is Dianne McCollough, past acting
executive director for the Chicago Southside National Association for
the Advancement of Colored People.

To the Honorable Congressman Bennett M. Stewart, Congressman
Robert Garcia, and Congresswoman Cardiss Collins, I am speaking on
behalf of Frank J. Williams, president of the Chicago Southside
National Association for the Advancement of Colored People.
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The NAACP is the largest andl( oldest civil rights organization in the
country, fighting for the elimination of discrimination of all aspects of
public life since 1909. The association is deeply concerned[ with all
factors related to achieving an accurate count (luring the 1980 census,
especially in the black an(l minority communities.

The U.S. Constitution mandates that a census of population and
housing is taken every 10 years for the purpose of equal apportionment
among the States for seatts in the House of Representatives. Congres-
sional redistricting will take place after the 1980 census. On August 1,
1979, new census estimates reflect that seven districts in Chicago have
lost population since 1970. The First Congressional District, which
Congressman S"tewart represents, has been estimated to have lost
15.2 j)ercent of their population . The Seventh Congressional District
which Congresswoman Collins represents is estimated to have lost
13.1 percent of its population. We have large concentrations of
minorities in both of those districtss.

An accurate (ount for 1980 is critical to the black community. We
cannot afford to erode the political base in the black community due to
a l)O)ulation undercount.

Census data is also usedt for allocating Federal money to State and
local governments. Our research shoxvs that more than $50 billion is
(listribute(l annually by the Federal Government, using census (daita ts
the basis for allocation. Includled are program funIs for senior citizens,
Head Start, grants to e('i,,)tionally dleprived children, CETA, housing,
public safety, health, economic development and many other programs
that benefit our families.

The Census Bureau reports an undercount of the population in 1970
with 2.5 percent of the total population being missed. H-owever, even
more astounding, 7.7 percent of the black l)opulation was missed,
compared to only 1.9 l)ercent of the white population. If the Census
Bureau is making a concentrated effort to eliminate this large discrep-
ancy, every black individual throughout the country will be counted,
including families that live in the urban ghetto.

There is an ever present fear and distrust of all Government officials
in the black community, based upon past experience of harassment and
invasion of privacy from governmental agencies. In many instances
information gathered by these agencies was later used against the
people.

The NAACP understands the legal provisions under title XIII of
the United States Codte, which protects any information collected by
the Census Bureau from disclosure to any other governmental agency.
Nevertheless, it will take more than a law on the books to gain the
confidence of the people in the black community.

The effect of another undercount in 1980 will be devastating to the
minority community. An undercount will result in less political
representation and a reduction in Federal assistance for community
programs.

The black community is faced with overcrowded schools, housing
and high unemployment. It is imperative that blacks and other
minorities understand the correlation between human services and
the 1980 census.

The NAACP is aware of the many programs instituted by the Census
Bureau to reduce the undercount, including the national services
program, the community services program, the National Advisory
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Committee, on which we have two representatives, and the public
information program.

The NAACP has participated in training sessions and workshops
sponsored by the Census Bureau, community services specialists who
assist in spreading census awareness in the black community. As a
result of working with community services specialists the NAACP
requests that Congress will appropriate funding for the continuation
of the community services program after 1980, in order that community
organizations presently receive, and their assistants, will be serviced
with data access and use after the 1980 census.

Unemployment is very high in the black community and the
NAACP is concerned with the process of selE cting a temporary work
force of approximately 6,000 persons that will be hired to take the
1980 census in Chicago. The year 1980 will be an especially important
year for black people in the United States. In November we will hell)
elect a national administration. On April 1, 1980, we will have an
opportunity to stand up and be counted.

For many years there were those of us who felt that there were delib-
erate attempts to undercount black people. The NAACP will work
diligently in spreading census awareness on the importance of being
counted throughout the black community because it is the constitu-
tional right of every one of us to be counted in this important census.

The NAACP, both nationally and locally, will support the Census
Bureau in securing an accurate and complete census count for 1980.

I might also add that we have had census workshops at our national
convention, this summer. At the regional convention this past spring,
and this past weekend at the State of Illinois convention of NAACP,
there have been census workships.

Thank you.
Mr. GARCIA. Thank you.
Mr. Walentynowicz is next.

STATEMENT, OF L. F. WALENTYNOWICZ

Mr. WALENTYNOWIC7. I would ask to put my full statement into
the record and I would like to summarize it at this time. In fact, I
would like to depart from it, make some observations. My statement
was prepared, at the time I did not have the opportunity to hear
your remarks, the remarks of the committee, the remarks of the
other witnesses that gave testimony this morning.

In thinking over those remarks and analyzing those remarks I note
the development of many positive themes which we can support. I am
speaking for the Polish-American community. Themes like, that it's
important to have a very accurate census count because if America is
to have equality it's important to have accurate data. I think all of
the members of the committee have made that point abundantly
clear. There are different ways of getting it. There is a difference,
Professor Hauser suggested that perhaps we get at it by adjustments,
that we don't have to spend more money in educating the public and
persuading the public of the need of an accurate census count. Perhaps
the answer is a ittle bit of both. I understand why an accurate count
is very important to the black community, the Spanish community,
even the female community.
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The thing that hit me as I sat here today was the initial theme of
this conference, we're talking about an undercount. Undercount sug-
ests to me that somebody is being counted, but he's not being

fairly counted.
Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, speaking on behalf of

the Polish-American community, I'm telling you that not only (1o we
have a problem of undercount, we are not even being counted. There
is no category for us. There is no category for other significant groups
that make up America. We want to know, why is this so?

I have elaborated it in my statement, but I put the question to you,
why is it so? It is important to make sure that we have an accurate
count of blacks and Spanish, why isn't it important that we have an
accurate count of Polish-Americans, Italian-Americans and all the
other ethnic groups and groups that make up not only Chicago, but
this great country of ours.

Mr. GARCIA. If I may, I would like to respond to that immediately,
because I couldn't agree with you more.

I think the purpose of the census, what I have tried to as the chair-
person of this committee is that because historically the basic problems
that we have had in the minority communities have been, those
communities have been the ones who have faced the severest under-
count.

Just let me relate to the city of New York, where I come from, where
you have a diversified group of all sorts of ethnic backgrounds and
races. We have a large Greek community in sections of Queens, N.Y.
We are working very hard right now to make sure that those persons
are counted, as well, by having persons from the Greek-American
community count in that community.

We would hope, and while ti:,o emphasis may be on minorities here,
I would hope that the message is very clear that what we are striving
and pushing for is a count o every person and in terms of the Polish
community, one of the questions that I was preparing, thinking of while
you were speaking, in the city of Buffalo, N.Y., we have a large Polish-
American community.

Mr. WALENTYNOWiCZ. That's where I come from, originally.
Mr. GARCIA. Then you know exactly what I am talking about.
The point I am trying to say is, we are working right now in Buffalo

with Congressman Nowack who is of Polish extraction, to make sure.
Here in the city of Chicago, Ed Derwinski, who is a Congressman
from Chicago and suburban areas, is working with him. We feel it is
important as you feel the importance. I am hopeful that we will have
people who are Polish-Americans, who can speak the language, count-
ing those persons in those communities where there are large groups
of Polish-Americans. I think it just makes sense. I just think if you
can talk one to one you are going to be able to relate better.

Mr. WALENTYNOWICZ. I am very happy to hear that positive state-
ment by you. Let me just make a couple of practical observations.

On, there is no community service, as I know, committee here in
the Chicago area directed to the Polish-American community, to my
knowledge. There may be one or two Polish-American representatives
on the regional office, but there is no community service. We would
hope that there would be a greater outreach program. Not only here in
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Chicago but otherwise. I think it is awfully important to have a sepa-
rate category for grou ps. All too often the 0 and B has, not all too
often, throughout tie last 10 or 15 years the () and B has created the
fiction that the only groups that count in America are five groups,
black, Hispanic, Native American, Asian American, and white, other
than IHisl)anic. '1hat, to me as an American citizen, is insulting. I
have my own separate identity. I'm not denying the fact that I am
white, other than H1ispanic, l)ut I am also just as much a Polish
American as the Spanish is Hispanic American or the black iN a black
American.

Mr'. GARCIA. I couldn't agree with you more.
Mr. VAI ENTYNOWIcZ. But this is what happens. This is why the

Polish-American community has mixed feelings toward the 1980
census. They are saying to me, what vill become of it, what is it to me
to be counted? Where will I have an opportunity to be represented in
our Government?

We have the Office of Personnel Mlanagement, Mlr. Campbell,
suggesting that now government employment at all levels should be
based on the concept of underrepresentation. We didn't talk about
discrimination or reme(lies, he just talked about underrepresentation.

If we are not going to be counted as Polish Americans what good
is the concept of undlerrepresentation?

Mr. GARCIA. If I may, andI I want to ask some questions of the
other witnesses, but just in regards to the Polish-American community,
I would answer you by saying the following:

I believe that we are strong and powerful as a nation only because
we are so diversifiedd. Only because we in communities have been able
to maintain our heritage and in those communities where heritage
may have been taken away from them they are now coming back and
understanding the importance andI they are searching ail are looking
into their heritage. I have no problem with that. I believe that's a
positive part of this country, which we can all relate to and identify
with and so to that end I will not, under any circumstances, as long
as I am the chairperson of this committee, (leeml)hasize any ethnic
role in this country. Tihe only reasons why I have been pushing in terms
of the undercount is because it is starkly in common areas where the
black community has been severely handica)l)ed because of the under-
count, as well as the lHispanic community, where they di(ln't even
have a count.Mr. WALENTYNOWvICZ. I sympathize with you. I hope you under-
stand, but you made the point just a moment ago when you said the
Hispanics weren't ever counted. That's here we find ourselves now.

Mr. GARCIA. Unfortunately, 1980 is upon us. Hopefully by 1990,
which is what we wvent through in 1970, we will be able to find our-
selves in a situation where these areas will be taken. I am glad there
are still people here from the census who will listen to this testimony
and this should be a matter of record that will go to the Bureau of the
Census. As long as I am the chairperson, as I said before, I am going
to monitor the Bureau of the Census an(l make sure that all persons
are involved.

Mr. WALENTYNOWICZ. Congress recently passed, and the President
signed on October 6 a law, an amendment to the Civil Rights Act of
1957, 104-G, which directs the Civil Rights Commission to study
discrimination and affirmative action as it affects Americans of East
European and South European origin.
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Now, you cannot really do that unless the Census Bureau in the
1980 census takes extra care in directing itself to the long haul ques-
tion about ancestry. Now, after a long effort there is a question finally
based upon ancestry. The question is so nebulous, the direction is so
vague, that that question can be misinter)retel and it coul(I be mis-
used in the future and I would hope that given the support that you
have given, I take very gratefully the comments you have male here,
telling the Census Bureau and so forth, that the message goes out
that there should be extra efforts to educate the public as to needs
and how to answer that question in dealing with ancestry on the 1980
census form. That, question is only going to be ad(lressed to 20 percent
of the household,. It's not going to be a 100 percent form question. I
would hope that after listening to Professor Hauser that there be
some adjustment made of the fact that here, we as the group who have
never been counted tire only going to get a sample count under am-
biguous circumstances in the 1980 census.

M r. GARCIA. Just let me finish up with this. I want to ask some
other questions.

I will make sure that before this is printed in the record, as far as
I am concerned one of the fairest and most upfront Congresspersons
that I have met since I have been in Congress is Ed Derwinski. I am
not saying it because I am in Chicago. I just think he is absolutely a
fair human being and he is a member of this committee. He is the
ranking minority member on the Committee on Post Office and Civil
Service and I wouldI hope that you will try and contact his office this
week. . will contact his office this week an(d I will make your state-
ment known to Congressman Derwinski. If you meet with his staff
people, between the both of us I am sure we will try and work some-
thing out that is equitable to the Polish-American community, es-
pecially that community here in the State of Illinois, for which you
are so concerned.

Mr. WALENTYNOWICZ. Thank you.
[The prepared statement follows:]

STATEMENT OF LEONARD F. WALENTYNOWICZ, EXECUTIVE: DIRECTOR, POLISH
AMERICAN CONGRESS

Mr. Chairman and members of this Committee: In behalf of the Polish American
Congress and its President, Mr. Aloysius A. Mazewski, who is unable to be here
today because ef other pressing commitments in Rome, Italy, I wish to extend our
sincere appreciation for this opportunity to express our concerns and views with
respect to the subject matter of this hearing.

Americans of Polish heritage view the coming 1980 Census with mixed feelings.
We support enthusiastically the constitutional requirement that there be a Census
periodically for the reasons cited in the findings and purposes set forth in the
Census Act of 1977. These include such purposes as the need for accurate informa-
tion to plan and analyze policies and to allocate funds so as to promote the general
welfare. What troubles us, however, is present plans and practices relating to
what kind of information is going to be collected, how it is to be collected and to
what use it is going to be put to.

We don't believe any one will seriously question the utility of an accurate data
and analytical base in making informed decisions. The Census Bureau itself issued
a 66-page summary detailing the rationale behind the data it will seek in the 1980
Census and the statutory authority supporting it. The importance of such data and
analytical base is increased by the impact of our present inflation and declining
economic expansion. Such data has become even more important as the American
society switches emphasis from assimilation to pluralism. If pluralism is to work,
then it is extremely important that all of the groups that make up America be
identified and counted and not just some, and especially in an America that has to
tighten its belt. Essential to a successful operation of a pluralistic society is the
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belief that each group is fairly treated which means, among other things, equality
of opportunity in such areas as jobs, education, housing, Federal funds, etc.
Fortunately or unfortunately, depending on your point of view, this concept of
equality has evolved to a point where equality of result has become more impor-
tant than equality of opportunity. For example, the U.S. Office of Personnel
Management today talks of "underrepresentation", meaning in essence that a
certain number of jobs at all level of government activity should belong to a
certain group simply because of the numbers of that group. The U.S. Supreme
Court in the celebrated "Weber" case has approved similar rationale in private
industry.

We could go on to detail other examples, but the point is clear, numbers are
very important in determining group and individual success and position in a
pluralistic society, so that it is important to be identified and counted.

These observations bring us to a consideration of what specifically troubles us
in the 1980 census. Neatly put, we believe the proposed census makes only a half-
hearted attempt to identify and count us, and unless remedial steps are taken,
the census will end up being a source of new patterns of discrimination and
unfairness.

For example, we wonder about the wisdom and fairness of including a question
relating to race, and national origin or descent for such groups as Spanish Hispanic,
Japanese, Chinese, Filipino, Korean, Vietnamese, Guamanian, Samoan, Eskimo
and Aleut, on every census form, but limiting identification of Polish Americans
and other like groups to only the long census form which will be sent to only
21 percent of America's households.

We have been advised by the Census Bureau that such groups as Samoans,
Eskimos, Aleut, Filipino, Korean, and Vietnamese are estimated to be so small in
number and so dispersed that an accurate count can only occur if the question is
asked on all forms. We understand and support such rationale if the premises are
accurate, but we cannot understand nor (to we accept the decisionn to count such
large groups as Spanish/Hispanics and blacks on a 100 percent basis while failing to
count in the same manner significant groups such as Polish Americans, Italian
Americans, Irish Americans, et cetera. We have never been identified and accu-
rately counted. So, how can the Census Bureau conclude that a sample count is
sufficient?

We also wonder about the wisdom and fairness of the form of the questions on
the long form by which a person can identify himself as a Polish American, Italian
American, Arab American, Irish American and so forth. We all realize that the
census is a form of burden of one's time. In addition, and without being pompous,
it is clear that many people will have difficulty in understanding and responding to
the questions. Thus, we can see the utility in creating categories in facilitating a
response such as has been done in questions 4 and 7 of the short form, i.e., black or
Negro, Puerto Rican, Chicano, et cetera. Yet, no such categories have been created
on the form for groups such as Polish Americans, Italian Americans, Greek Ameri-
cans, Irish Americans, et cetera. To the contrary, a person has to write in how he
identifies himself, instead of checking a box. A simila;" form of question dealing
with Spanish/Hispanics used in a dress rehearsal in Virginia proved confusing and
was altered. We don't know what confusion will result from the present form of the
question dealing with ancestry, but the potential is there. Another aspect of our
concerns in this area is that a person can and should be identified two or three
times in different ways. For example, a person does not only identify himself as
black or white under question four, but can further identify himself as to his na-
tional origin on question 14. The way the questions are presented now makes it
unclear whether an American of Mexican origin should identify himself as white
under question 4, as Mexican and Hispanic under question 7, and again as Mexican
and Hispanic under question 14. Similarly, it is not clear whether an American of
Korean origin should identify himself as korean twice, once under question 4 and
another time under question 14.

Present Government practices make categories mutually exclusive. It is im-
portant to determine what kind and how data is collected in the first instance so
that it later is not misinterpreted or manipulated.

We hope that our remarks are not misconstruelt, for we take no offense to and
support groups such as blacks, Hispanics, women, Asian Americans and other
groups who have acquired acceptance by the bureaucracy as separately identi-
fiable groups to actively compete for upward mobility and their place in American
society, provided we are treated fairly and given the same consideration. We
recognize that America is black and white, male and female, Hispanic and non-
Hispanic, but it is equally true and just as important to recognize that America is
more than black and white, male and female, and Hispanic and non-Hispanic.
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Our concerns here must be considered in light of what has occurred to groups
such as ours for the past 20 years. When the civil rights movement first began in
the 1950's, it rightfully concerned itself with the redress of the rights of the
groups that were totally or mostly left out at that time, such as blacks. Unfor-
tunately our practices and preoccupation with the problems of groups which were
originally totally or mostly left out, has created new patterns of discrimination
and the reality of totally or mostly leaving out groups such as Poli-h Americans,
Italian Americans, et cetera. A vivid example of this is the record of the Civil
Rights Commission, upon which we testified previously, Fortunately, Members
of Congress such as Senator Jesse Helms and Congresspersons Barbara Mikulski
and Donald Edwards were sensitive to our pleas and were instrumental in passing
S. 721 which now directs such Commission to study discrimination and affirmative
action, including Federal policies and practices, as they affect Americans of East
European and South European origins.

We remember the tremendous effort that was made to include the ancestry
question in present census forms, but we also feel and experience the intransigence
that exists even now to the justice of such groups as Polish Americans, Italian
Americans, et cetera, to be recognized in their own right and not a. part of an
amorphous group called, "none of the above, '' 'other" or "white other than
Hispanic."

While we appreciate the efforts that have been made up to now to rectify this
problem area in the census, much more must be done. The people who take the
census must be selected carefully so that they reflect a sensitivity to what is
involved, an ability and talent to respond, appropriate background to secure
confidence, and above all fairness and without any preconceived notion that the
census is to benefit only certain groups.

Next, the public must be educated well as to how the forms are to be completed,
the need for and desirability to identify oneself, and that one is not a disloyal
American if he or she does identify as to his or her national origin.

The bureaucracy and especially the Census Bureau must be made aware that,
there is no impediment, philosophically, practically, constitutionally, statutorily,
judicially, by executive order or otherwise which prevents them from creating
new categories for groups such as Polish Americans, Italian Americans, Irish
Americans, et cetera., and that such groups and catagories must be considered
whenever decisions are made.

We have been advised by the Census Bureau that they have developed the
computer capability of Landling several hundred different categories so that we
can dismiss as pure obstructionism and discrimination the persistent claim that
it would be unwieldy to create and handle more than the five categories that are
currently fashionable.

We have also been advised by the Office of Management and Budget that all
government agencies can create additional categories for data collection and
analysis. We suggest to this Committee that you question the further direction
of OMB that all such additional categories be subsumed under the existing
five categories.

We are also concerned that the data eventually collected will make no legal
distinction between those who are here legally and those who are here without
legal sanction. We understand the argument that local authorities should be
reimbursed for providing services to individuals that the federal government has
permitted to remain in our country without legal sanction. We wonder whether
the best solution is to create a permanent subsidy for this condition to remain.
Turning to a different aspect of this concern, we protest vigorously bureaucratic
and judicial decisions, especially quotas, timetables and goals, that are based on
data that includes or fails to distinguish between those who are here legally and
those who are he.e without legal sanction, and data that fails to distinguish
between those who have suffered discrimination and those who have not.

There are other observations we can make which we will defer in order to
respond to any questions and permit, others to be heard. We don't pretend to
know all the answers, but we do know when we are being treated unevenly and
unfairly.

We are tired of ha-iing our legitimate needs, views and values, neglected or
treated with indifference by our government. We are tired of always being included
in the target group that suffers the adverse consequences of many of the prefer-
ences being created and given today by our government. Simply put, if we are to
share in the burdens, we want to share in the benefits.

Even so, and since we are all Americans, we have hope and we want to work
with you, the Census Bureau and the bureaucracy to improve the situation so that
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America lives up to its promise of true equality instead of resorting to pseudo-
equality based primarily on political fashionability. Thank you for your time.

Ms. COLLINS. Mr. Ayala, let me start with you and I will just have
a couple of questions.

I believe you made the statement at the closing of your remarks,
and correct me if I am wrong, that the undocumented persons are tlhp
ones who have taxation without representation, (lid you make that
statement?

Mr. AYXLA. Yes.
IS. COLLINS. Do you want to elaborate on that, 2 or :3 seconds, for

me?
Mr. AYAL,. I think that taxation is one that they have taken over

the minimal jobs that now exist. They are now the porter, they are
now the waiter. They are working in certain categories.

M S. COLLINS. SO on taxation you are talking about income tax and
that sort of thing?

Mr. AYAL,. Right. Where taxes are taken out, both Federal and
State and if you have been reading the Chicago paper, not too long
ago our illustrious Gov. Jim Thompson ma(Ie a comment on the
undocumented worker, which is viewed in the Latino community
not favorably, since part of that tax base that they pay, pays the
salary. I think it is going to be important in the undercount. I think
the undercount, especially with the undocumented workers, a State
person stated that they believed there were between 200,000 and
300,000. If the census, if we have the right )ersonnel taking that
census count the impact of the numbers will be tremendous.

Ms. COLLINS. Let me ask you a question. Do you really believe
within yourself that those people who are undocumented, that they
are going to fill -out a form and mail it to the U.S. Government or that
they are going to let somebody come in their house and check off
these little items on these census figures to let somebody know that
they are undocumented aliens?

Mr. AYALA. Well, if the question is put to them undocumented
they are leery of anybody coming. Working with community organiza-
tions, working with other groups wili have some rapport, have some
contact with certain individuals in the geographic area, I think we
could take a better count.

Ms. COLLINS. But they won't be identified. This form asks for name
and a(lress and all that sort of different stuff. Wouldn't they, in
essence, be pulling the cover off of themselves if they fill out this
census form or discuss it with anybody?

Mr. AYALA. I think they will be. I think they will put that informa-
tion (town, because as I understand it, that material is confidential. I
think that has to be-

Ms. COLLINS. Do you really think that a nondocumented person Is
going to feel and believe that that information is confidential?

Mr. AYALA. Let me put it this way.
Ms. COLLINS. No; answer my question. Do you really feel that a

person who is undocumented is going to believe that when he fills or
she fills this form out that that's going to be confidential information
and is never going to come back to haunt them, one way or the other?
That somebody is not going to knock on their door asking for a green
card. Somebody is not going to go to their employer, because all this
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information is on this form, as to why is this person in this country,
lie is undocumented. Do you really believe that?

Mr. AYALA. Could I answer that now?
Ms. COLINS. Answer it.
Mr. AYALA. If the right person (loing that census, like individual

have that rapport with the community, have known that family, yes,
they will get that information.

ms. CoLLiNs. What good would it (1o them to send them this form,
whoever gets the information for them. If I were an undocumented
alien or if I were an un(locimnente(l person I wouldn't a bit more fill
out this form than I would walk to immigration and say, I'm here
illegally.

Mr. AYALA. That's if they send it to you. There is a point beyond
that.

Ms. COLLINS. What I am saying to you is, they may give that
person that information. You are saying they will give that person
the information, but, then, wouldn't they be afraid to have the enu-
merator to turn it into the Census Bureau? What's that enumerator
going to (1o, throw it away after he gets the information?

Mr. AYALA. Again, (onrresswoman, it is very important who is
doing the followup an(l who is (loing the census.

Ms. COLLINS. I (lon't want to disagree with you, but I (1o. I don't
understand the difference.

Mli. AY.ALA. The difference is that I know the Latin community
better than you (do. I walk it all the time. You haven't been around
there much. We would like to see you there, but the fact remains that
I have rapport, other people in the Latino community have the ral)-
port aild could (1o that, working along with the regiona .1y statement
that the regional people have to get more bilingual, more cultural
people to go (lown there, to follow it through. Yes, it could be (lone,
but it is going to take the work of everyone here interested in that
census count.

Ms. COLLINs. I thank you.
Ms. McCullough, you mentioned that the NAACP is interested in

what you have. Now, we have a )roblem, perhal)s we (1o have undocu-
mented persons, but our i)roblem seems to be in some areas of the city
of Chicago, as well as in areas of the country, that there are l)eo)le who
don't want to be counted for whatever reasons there tire, a number of
reasons. Perhaps they feel that if they come and ring a doorbell and
they list that they have six children anl there is a man living in the
household who is not sul)l)osed to be living there, that )erhaps their
moneys will be cut off, they (on't want caseworkers to know. A lot of
people have a problem, not so much from bilingual, but just not filling
out this form, reading the form, taking the time to do it. A lot of people
will decide, what difference does it make, as you have said. If you fill it
out what's going to happen, how are we going to benefit our community,
what have you.

What has the NAACP lone to address itself to those kinds of
questions in getting out the type of response we hope to have on
April 1, 1980?

Ms. McC,louOi. OK. The NAACP is not just. going out there
and talking to people and saying that Federal money is allocated on the
basis of the census. We are not doing that. We are bringing it on back
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home and we are letting them know the day care center comes from
having accurate census data. That's based on the number of children
under a certain age group. We ire letting them know that Iead Start,
GED programs, we are letting them know that housing planning and
school planning and all your paiks and all these other services, CETA,
jot,', we are beinging home the services to the people and how they
relate to the census information.

Ms. COLLINS. I ask you, then, the same information that I asked
Mr. Ayala.

Do you think that a person who might have some kind of problem
with writing down, if they have a live-in friend, if you will, is going to
give that information to anybody? Do you agree that that person is
going to be afraid that they are going to lose benefits they are currently
getting?

Ms. MCCULLOUGH. I agree that the people will be afraid an(! that's
why we take on part of the responsibility of trying to educate the
community. That t-he Census Bureau is only interested in statistics
and that they are protected by law. The Census Bureau says that there
has never been a claim of information getting out aMd until anyone can
come forth and show that there has been information that has gotten
out, then, we will have to go along with them.

MAIs. ('OL INS. Let me follow uj). )'ou mentioned about tie lIav,
but in your statement you said, nevertheless it will take more than
the law-the people and that's whatt I want to know from you two.
How are you going to gain that confidence, from vhlat you are doing
in your own individual groups.

,Nis. MCCULLOUGH. Tle way we tre going to have to gain that
confidence is, just keep getting out there, talking to our minister,
that have a lot of influence among blacks in the black community.
Talking to other, just grassroot people. Go on to Robert Taylor,
going to Cabrina Green, going to wherever it i,; nece-sary andl getting
the word to a few people that can, then, go in there even further and
touch bases with even more people. That's what we are going to have
to (10, and to hire people. We can't be sending anvl)ody from the North
Side into Robert Taylor Hall to take a census. We will be looking for
people who live in Robert Taylor homes to touch bases with the
people and communicate with the people and that's what the N.AACP
will have to do, educate those people.

Ms. COLLINS. Mr. Walentynowicz, just let me say that I certainly
un(lerstand your concern; everybody wants to be'counted. I think
sitting at this table right now you have three distinct groups of people
and the thing that I see and the thing that I have herd is that there
is a common malady of concern, that we all be counted as Americans
in this country and that's what the job is all about. I hope the census
is going to be effective for that reason, so that till of us; will be counted
and us high numbers as is possible to get and, then, l)erhaps with the
adjustment figures that are necessary, we will all get our fair share of
whatever this country has to offer, including an identity.

I thank you all for coming.
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Mr. STEWART. May I take the opportunity to thank each of you
for whilt ou have (lone. Ylou have shown the interest that has (e-
velope(d in communitie.s from which you have come, because you would
not just come here on your own accord, unless there was some interest
there. You realize how important the census is from every standpoint
tifl your c-oming here has given us the kind of united front that I
think that we must have in order to get this message out to the people.

This is one of the most important jobs that I feel thatt we can do,
for 1980, to lay the groumwork no\\ amd see to it that every person
who has influence in the (omlflunity, whether lie be the tavern opera-
tor, tile beauty lparlor operator, tie grocery store operator, the school
i)rincipal, the teachers, the doctors, the )rea hers; we must, as in(li-
vidutils, get to those peol)le and do tlie job that has been (lone for us.
We have not always believed that counting an( the census was as
important us it is now. We are (oncernel about counting. We know
we will never get 100 percent. If we passed out a questionnaire in
here now and a,ked you to fill out that questionnaire and (dro) it in
the box outside of that door-if we have 17 people in here, when you
go out and get those (questionnaire, you would not have even 15 in
there. I will bet you onl that. We (lon't expect to get t 100-percent
count. But what we (1o expect to do is improve on what we have and
it can be lone. It' we believe it, like we sty we 1)elic-ve it, and if we can
get the people in our communities to believe it, as we believe it, there
is no question that the 1980 census will be an improvement over 1970
-andi as far back t,, you can go.

I want to thank you for coming. You have (lone us a great favor.
You have (lone your community a great favor and you have (lone your-
self a great favor. You have brought in valuable information and
encouragement to the committee which ha.s a responsibility for getting
this count.

Mr. GARCIA. It closing, I wouhl like to thank every person who
testified here to lay.

I leave the city of lhicago; we now go to the city of Detroit, but
I am confi(lent that the message is loud andl clear.

%want to e-specially thank those .Members of Congress who have
testified, and I especially want to thank the members of the com-
mittee here in ('hiccgo--ongresswoman Collins anl Congressman
Stewart-for working, and their staff I would like to thank, as well,
because they did a lot of work in coordinating our visit to Chicago.

I now call the meeting to a close.
[Whereupon, at 1:20 p.m., the hearing was closed.]
[The following letter was received for the record:]

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE,
BUREAU OF THE CENSUS,

Washington, D.C., January 28, 1980.
HON. ROBERT GARCIA,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Census and Population, Committee on Post Office and

Civil Service, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: This is in reply to your letter of January 7, 1980, for-

warding questions based on the hearings of November 5 in Chicago.
The responses to these questions are enclosed. I have also enclosed a computer

printout which will serve as the answers to questions 8 and 9.
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It was good visiting with you recently, andt I am most grateful for your con-
tinuing support of the 1980 census.

Sincerely,
VINCENT P. BARABIJA,

Director, Bureau of the Census.
Enclosures.
1. What steps has- the Bureau taken to directly involve Chicago area minority

media, public relations and advertising firms in the local census promotional
campaign?

The Chicago office has several efforts designed to involve minority media in the
promotion of the census.

(a) They have hired a minority census information technician (CIT) who will
concentrate on serving minority media and on involving them in census promo-
tional efforts.

(b) In a joint effort of community services and public information personnel,
the Chicago office has formed a committee of media minorities in support of the
census.

(c) The Community Services Staff regularly participates in radio and television
presentations to talk about the census, job opportunities, and the effects the
census will have, such as political representation, program funding, etc. Although
many of these appearances are on programs geared to minority audiences, the
staff has appeared regularly on majority media as well.

At the present time, our involvement with public relations and advertising
firms takes place when they request census data. We have not sought their assist-
ance in our promotional campaign in the Chicago area.

2. What, if any, input have these groups been asked to provide to the Bureau
with respect to the promotional effort in and around Chicago and in what way have
they responded?

Acceptance of the promotional plan by minority media has been excellent. We
are now in the discussion stage with several outlets with a view toward helping
themproduce their own public service announcements.

3. To what extent will the Ad Council's advertising and pul)licity for the 1980
census specifically address and reach various ethnic and racial group s in the
Chicago metropolitan area, including the Polish-American community

The Chicago area wiP' ')e heavily covered by the Ad Council's distribution of
materials for all printe .nd electronic media, billboards, transit car cards, etc.
Media representing various minority groups will be included in this effort.

The Bureau has a number of promotional efforts independent of the Ad Council
in which a great effort has been made to include all minority media. For example,
in October 1979, the Bureau sent a mailing to more than 44,000 U.S. magazines.
In January, there will be mailings to newspapers, both daily and weekly, and to
radio and television stations.

Three recording companies are now recording "soul" versions of our public
service announcements. These will be distributed through the National Black
Network and the Mutual Black Network. In addition, we have asked our com-
munity services specialists (CSSs) to enlist the help of credible and articulate
community leaders to appear on minority-oriented radio and television programs.

These programs and many more have lail the groundwork for an unprecedented
effort to promote the 1980 census in minority areas through minority media.

4. How many Community Service Representatives will he assigned exclusively
to the Chicago area fulltime?

Ten full-time CSSs will he assigned to the city of Chicago, with an additional
person covering the suburban areas of the standards metropolitan statistical
area (SMSA).

5. How many CRS's will be assigned to not only Chicago but outlying areas
or neighboring states as well?

In addition to the CSSs mentioned( in item 4, we will have three CSSs for the
balance of the State of Illinois, five for Indiana andl two for Kentucky. We have
three CSSs who cover the entire region.

6. What communities (please list) are targeted for CSR activities in the Chicago
area?
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All minority communities in the Chicago area will be targeted for
The names of these communities are as follows:

Uptown
Lincoln Square
North Center
Lake. View
Lincoln Park
Near North Side
Logan Square
Humboldt Park
West Town
Austin
West Garfield Park
East Garfield Pai k
Near West Side
North Lawn(dale
South Lawndale
Lower West Side
Near South Side
Armour Square
Douglas
Oakland
Fuller Park
Grand Boulevard
Kenwood
Washington Park
Hyde Park
Woodlawn
South Shore
Chatham
Avalon Park

CSS activities.

South Chicago
Burnside
Calumet Heights
Roseland
Pullman
South )eering
East Side
West Pullman
Rivei dale
flegewisch
Garfield Ridge
Archer Heights
Brighton Park
McKinley Park
New City
West Elsrlon
Gage Park
Clearing
West Lawn
Chicago Lawn
West Englewood
Englewood
Greater Gorand Circle
Auburn Gresham
Beverly
Washington HIeights
Morgan Park
O'Ilare

In addition, suburban communities with sizeale minority populations also are
being targeted. Special attention is being given to the following:

Harvey
Phoenix
Markham
Robbins
Blue Islaid
Chicago Heights
Park Forest South
Richton Park
Orland Park
Calumet City

Riverdale
Burbank
Summit
LaGrange
Oak Park
Maywood
Argo
North Chicago
Waukegan

7. How current were the mailing lists provided for the city of Chicago by the
vendor?

In 1977, the various available address lists were evaluated. We purchased the
list which we were told had been updated most recently. This list covers ZIP
codes beginning with 606 which includes the entire city of Chicago and a small
portion of the nearby suburban area.

8. How many additions or deletions were made by the U.S. Postal Service to
the original mailing list for Chicago?

9. In what sections of the city did the majority of these corrections occur?
Please describe briefly the economic, racial and ethnic composition of these areas.

Enclosure 2 of the letter is a copy of a computer printout which provides, for
each 5-digit ZIP code beginning with 606, the number of address cards sent to the
post offices, the number of "adds," corrections (code 3), duplicates, (code 4),
missorts or cards sent to the wrong post office (code 5), businesses (code 6), and
undeliverables (code 7). Please disregard the columns headed "ZIP Corr-Moved
and ZIP Coor-Added." These columns represent changes in postal geography.
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Those addresses marked "undeliverable" by the post office are not deleted from
our address lists until they are confirmed to be undeliverable (luring the second
phase of the Advance Post Office Check.

We do not have the economic and demographic data by ZIP code which would
characterize the composition of areas with numerous address corrections.

10. What procedures has the Bureau developed to insure that persons and
families moving into Chicago prior to or shortly after census dlay are counted?

The Bureau does not presently do a toer's check. In the past, procedures for
such a check were carefully researched and tested. It was found that extremely
elaborate and costly methods add(d only about .01 percent to the count.

Our vacant/delete check during the Followup II pha-(e partially compen-atels
for this change. This procedure identifies postcensus (lay move'rs who move into
housing units that were vacant on (en-.us I)av. These people are contacted and
asked if they were counted at their old adldress. If not, they are then interviewed for
census information. Of course, precen-u- movers should be counted at their new
address.

11. In Chicago, has the bureau conducted a building-by-building check or
verification of residential unit-, and addresses especially in areas len-ely pot)ulated
by racial and ethnic minorities?

Our building-by-building check of mailing li-t,, to insure, accuracy i- called the
Precanvass operation and is a regular part of cenm.Iu operation. Thi work is
scheduled to take place February 20 through March 5, 1980, and will be (lone in
all parts of Chicago.

For precanvass each enumerator will be given a computer printout. The enu-
merator is to find missing addresses and to correct addrei--( that are not !)roperly
listed. Precanvass also includes a (uality control operation. All corrections will he
made before questionnaires are maile(d on March 28.

12. Has the city of Chicago prepared and delivered a liting of residential unit,
and addresses to update or verify the mailing list-?

The city of Chicago has not prepared a list of rv-idential addre'i-es to update or
verify our mailing list, but we will senl local government officials a computer
printout of our housing counts on two occasions. The officials have a chance to
compare our counts to their records and to tell u; if they believe our counts to
be high or low.

In Chicago, we have both precensus and po.tcensus local review. Officials receive
our printouts on a block-by-block basi-. If discrepancies exi-t, we will recanvass
the area to reconcile differences.

IThe statements which follow were received for the record:]
PREPARED STATEMENT PRESENTED BY PROF. GERALD .MCWORTER ON BEHALF OF

THE ILLINOIS COUNCIL FOR BLACK STUDIES

Mister Chairperson and Committee Members: We are pleased to appear before
you today and present the views of the Illinois Council for Black Studies on the
issue of the Black undercount in the 1980 census. This i.s a vital issue and, as a
professional organization of Black scholars and students, we must take a clear
public stand on what represents the best interests of Black people on the census.

We are aware of the efforts of this committee ti raise the undercount issue )efore
the public. We are also aware that the Census Bureau in Washington has itself
been doing considerable work on the measurement of the undercount. As we move
toward the 1980 census, we would like to express our particular pleasure at the
cooperative efforts of the census official responsible for Illinois, Regional Director
Stanley D. Moore.

Our responsibility is to support everything positive lone by this committee
and by the Bureau of the Census. But we must not stop with this type oif support.
We must say at the outset that we are here as both scholars of the Black exper-
ience as well as advocators of far-reaching basic social change. Soi our bottom line
is to connect our fight against a bad and unjust census with our fight for Black
liberation.

WHAT IS THE ILLINOIS COUNCIL FOR BLACK STUDIES?

Black enrollment in Illinois higher education is third highest state total in the
country with over 85,000 Black students. (1976 figures are California 136,085,
New York 5,846, and Illinois 77,351) The Illinois Council for Black Studies is
based on the theme of "Academic Excellence and Social Responsibility" which
brings together scholarship and advocacy for change.
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ICBS was founded at the University of Illinois. Planning for a statewide orga-
nization in Black Studies took definite shape at the "Symposium (on Academic
Excellence ani Social Responsiluility in Black Studies" held at the University
of Illinois (Circle) on February 29, 1979 in honor if the 110th anniversary oif the
birthday of I)r W. E. B. I)uBois, the renowned Afro-American -cholar activist.
The founding conference took place this past Octoeor 12, 1979 at the Urbana
campus of the University of Illinois. At the present time ICBS has the suppiirt
and participation of 19 different schools enrolling almo-t 35,000 Black students.
These 19 schools are pulilic, private, and Catholic institutions, bith two year
community colleges and four year universities throughout the state of Illinois.

HOW DO WE VIEW THE CENSUS BLACK UNDERCOUNT?

Every since the U.S. Constitution mandated that a census be taken (Article I,
section II) there ha- been a l)roi)lem with the undercount. But this has nt )een
entirely a passing problem of technique or organization. When it came to Black
people, it began as a matter (if legal principle. This section of the Constitution
reads as follows:

"Representatives and direct taxes shall be apportionei amning the several
states which may include within this Union according to their re.spective numbers,
which shall he determined by adding to the whole numiner if free iersoun-, in-
cluding those bouno to Service for a Term of Years, anil excluding Indians not
taxed, three fifths (if all other persons."

"Other persons'" is a 1787 way oif saying Black people who were slaves ani
numbered almost ine million. If we can sav that this represents an i ficial under-
count for economic and political reasons, thien wi have a clear point (,: ubpart ore:
for almost 200 years the census ha. lieu in the Black community.

Although demographers and government iuflicials have ci inistently been in the
heat of controverx-y regarding the overall quality (if the decennial census, must
agree that Blacks have been the mist undercunteul gr(,iL;) in the history of the
census. This includes the famous 1870 ('en-us. The Cen.us Bureau itself write:
"As regards the Negro element, therefore, the deficiencie if the cens-us (f 1870
were so considerable anul with respect toi different locafitie. so indeterminable as
practically to destroy the significance uif the (lata * *

On the other end of the historical continnum the overall undercount rates
have been going down, especially since 1940. But fir certain segments (f the
Black population in urban areas, the undercount rates have been going in the
opposite direction. The major example is this: for Black males between the. ages
of 20 to 39 there is an apparent decline in census accuracy. The undercount of
this segment of the Black community is increasing.

In general, while we know that the census is wrong, we really don't know how
wrong. What we can do is reach some kinul iif scientific and governmental con-
ser.-,: on an estimate o)f the errr as long as we accept the ilata sources used to
currec'. the census. Of course, these data sourcess are simply other government
agent ;subject ti their own sources (if error as well: "To derive the true popula-
tion the Bureau (if the Census uses prior cen.sus data, birth and death recorils,
immigration data, anil medicare records." Politically, there will never lue a con-
census on statistical fact as long as the statistics reflect a world in which Blacks are
the downtrodden poor ani in which middle class whites run the census, are the
demographers, and can determine "reality" whether they use the census or not.

At this point we are prepared to support the statistical work done by the Re-
search Department of the National Urban League under the direction of Dr.
Robert Hill. This work is clear, and points out that the Black undercount is
mainly in the largest geographical concentrations of Blacks, mainly in the urban
cet tr,. Over 30 percent of the total Black undercount is centered in the four
states of California, New York, Illinois, and Texas. This amounts to over half
a million people that were missed in the 1970 census (581,166). More revealing
is the fact that nearly 400,000 Blacks were missed in New York City (260,931)
and Chicago ( 131,337). This is a form of statistical genocide anui it must lue stopped.

This undercount is costing money and political representation. In terms of
revenue sharing the National Urban League estimated that Illinois lost about
$7.5 million and that Chicago lost $2.5 million. Further, while Chicago lost one
Congressional seat from the 1970 census, the Census Bureau has predicted that
Illinois will lose two seats overall on the basis of the 1980 census. This loss will
hit the Black inner-city population the hardest. (The First Congressional l)istrict,
for example, has an estimated population loss of over 15 percent.
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WIAT HAS TO BE DONE?

In the broadest sense, the census mut be more than a tool for analyzing the
majority of people in the society, most (Pf whom are not very well off ani[ who are
currently bearing most of the burden of the deepening social, economic andl
political crisis of American society. Just as it is used by corporations and market
developers, the census must also become a tool for the nma,-es of people to iliagnisie
the few who benefit froim the ills and suffering oif society. The truth is that the
census mystifies those on the opposite end of the economic spectrum. The super-
rich-those who own the banks and industries and those who recently reported
run-away profits in the oil industry-are invisible within the censllv. A wide
knowledge gap exists about this class of people. Anl as long as this iL the ease the
census will always 1)e one sided. But Our main lurpose now i- not to discui-., the
total census, though we have definite views. Today we are here to focus oin the
undercount (o! Black people.

At this point there are two basic demands we want to share with you based
on our particular concerns that we bring to this Open hearing. We are equally
commited, perhaps even more so, to other demands but these two, mnult be hear
from the Illinois Council f(Pr Black Studies.

1. Since we believe and we are certain that modest would agree that some form
of undercount is inevitable, we support the mandatory u-e Of a revise(i population
estimate which includes the undercount for the reapportionment ppf political
districts and the approlpriation (Pf federal, state, and local government monies.
Moreover, these revi-ed figures should be made available to, all governmental
units and published in a form accessible to the public. This should be done within
one year of the censtis, by April 1, 1981. Th ('Cens-us Butreau ha- the responsibility
of carrying cut this proc ssof arriving at a jiust estimate of tht undercount with
the full democratic participat ion of nn-governmental expert., p rticularly people
from those groups that have been historically undercount'l, 4,r their organizational
representatives. This i- a political as well as a scientific probllem and, therefore,
this principle of democratic participation is an e-sential one. For the national, state,
and local governments to refuse to use revised figures which include the under-
count a gross violation of the equal and democratic rights of Black Ili-lianics,
Asians, and Native Americans and Other Pppre.sed nationalities which are dis-
proportionately undercounted. It is another of the increasing indications that the
old patterns of racism are being (openly accepted. But these older more blatant
racist acts like segregation are now updated to a new kind ,,f stastical gerry-
mandering or redlining the impact of which is the same as that kinl oif political
gerrymandering that has already been deemed undemocratic and racist.

2. At this point the Black community is in so e .ensv, at lest on the scientific
front, defenseless. This means that the mathematical and statistical knowledge
among the masses is low, and that the systematic training if Black profe.,sionals
in this area is virtually non-existent. We want, nay, WE DEMAN D, that the
government provide $3 million to train 100 Black demographers by 1985 who can
participate in the analysis and evaluation oif the data from the 1980 census.

hese Black demographers can also ihe full scientific participants in the effort tip
(teal with the census Of 1990 more effectively. This copuipl lie effectively imple-
mented by existing graduate schools and Offering post doctoral fellowship at
leading demography and population centers throughout the U.S. This is the
minimum number of trained people needed immediately so it is a task that must
be undertaken now. This is the only guarantee that the Black community can ibe
involved on the scientific end of things in the future. This is one necessary step
to take in these times of technological innovation and scientific advancement.

WHAT IS THE ILLINOIS COUNCIL FOR BLACK STUDIES DOING?

Are we playing an advocacy role for the Census Bureau? No! This is a respon-
sibility that we cannot assume. This is the era of Watergate, of Cointelpro, and
other gross government violations of the rights (Pf people. We cannot guarantee
government confidentiality of census data, and that this information will not
be used to harass undocumented workers from Mexico, Haiti, Puerto Rico,
and other places; or that it will not, be used to harass Black families who have
been forced onto public assistance and into overcrowded housing liy the exploi-
tation and racism in this society. In fact, as the economic crisis becomes more and
more severe, we have historically seen attempts to look for a scape goat-any
scape goat-to take the heat iff the real culprits responsible for the crisis. Thus,
we would expect an increase in both open (legislative) and secret attempts to
utilize census data as a means of harassment.
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While the Illinois Council for Black Studies is not doing the work of the Census

Bureau-we are not telling peolile to le counted nor to hide and not be counted-
I.C.B.S. is not hitting idly by on its hands. We have planned a major national
conference ii (. ticago which will produce a significant body of opinion bearing
on the 1980 _-5sus and the undercount of Blacks. "Black People ani the 1980
Census: A Conference on the Population Undercount" will convene on No-
vember 30-December 1, 1979) at the Center for Continuing Education of the
University of Chicago.

The objectives of this conference are (1) to inform the Black coanity,
Black scholars, and others the plans of the Census Bureau for 1980; (2) to focus
attention on the historical (leveloliment of the Black undercount and the political
economy of the racism that this undercount represents; (3) to provide a forum
where the concerns of large sectors of the Black community can be voiced : and
(4) to mobilize to raise the level of political struggle for fair and just political
representation and share of government monies, b)oth based on the census count.

The conference will bring together a significant number of national, state,
and local spokespeople with a wide range of views. We are of course pleased that
Vincent P. Barabba, director of the U.S. Bureau of the Census, will address the
opening session of the conference. Nampeo MeKenney, chief (if the Bureau's
Racial and Ethnic Statistics staff will also lie a participant. Other invited and
confirmed participants are: Congresswoman Cardiss Collins, Congressman
Bennet Stewart, Mayor Richard Hatcher, Senator Richard Newhouse, and
Assemblyman Al Vann of New York (Brooklyn); Dr. l)Dris Saunders, Chair of
the Census Bureau Black Advisors Committee: )r. William Wilson, ('hair of the
Sociology department at the University of Chicago; l)r. Gerald MeWorter,
co-chair of the Illinois Council for Black Studies and[ director of the Afr,-American
Studies and Research Program at the University (of Illinois (Urbana); l)r. Robert
Hill, Research Director for the National Urban League: )r. Milton Morris,
Research Director for the Joint ('enter fu r Political Studies.

Speakers on the impact (of the census undercmnt on various aspects (f Black
community life andi on the use of census statistics will include: l)r. Malcolm Byrd,
Deputy Superintendent of the Board (if Eilucation; Leon Finney of The Wood-lawn Organization; Rev. Ed Riddick of Operation PUSHl; Waymon Winston,
Coordinator of the South Shore Housing Center; Edward Palmer of C(orphrand,
Inc.; I)r. Linda Williams of Howard University; I)r. Robert )avis of North
Carolina A & T University; I)r. Phillip lauser (if the University of Chicagi and
former acting director of the U.S. Bureat of the Census; and Leslie Range of the
Mississippi Research and Development Center. Professor William Lin (of the
University of Illinois (Circle) and a member of the Bureau's Asian-American
Advisory Committee will discuss the undercount (if Asian-Americans and a
representative from the Mexican-American Legal I)efense and Education Fund
will discuss the untlercilnt of Hispanic-Americans.

With these participants and a growing positive response from the Black com-
munity of Chicago, we are confident oif a fll and productive conference. Our
intentions are to publish the proceedings of the conference by February 1, 1981
so that our deliberations can ihe used tii inform the inevitable escalatiiin of dig-
cussion ani action as we m(ive closer to the 1980 census an(d ievond.

In brief, this is what the Illinois Council for Black Studies thinks abolt the
issues related to the 1980 census and the undercount of Black people. This con-
ference is one concrete activity that we have undertaken as part of our responsi-
bility to use the resources of Black Studies and higher education to explore anti
help find solutions to the critical problems affecting the well-being of the Black
community and the entire society.

The Illinios Cotncil for Black Studies invites the full support and cooperation
of everyone who shares our commitment not only to bringing about a fair and
just use of the 1980 census but to doing everything we can to achieve total justice
for Black people in the United States.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN G. FARY, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS FROM THE STATE
OF ILLINOIS

The importance of the 1980 Census to the City of Chicago cannot be overstated.
The figures provided by this Census will provide the basis for the reapportionment
of representation in several levels of government. It will also provide statistics
that will be used to compute funding levels for formula based grants. In short, the
1980 Census will set several standards which will greatly affect Chicago through-
out the 1980's.
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I need not point out of course that it is expected that Chicago will lose in most
of these ateas. It has to a certain degree suffered the same population losses that
other major northern cities have suffered. We expect to lose 2 Congressional seats
in Illinois at least one of which will be from Chicago. Therefore it is vital that an
accurate count be made of all the people living in Chicago. An undercount as
sizeable as those in the past is something that Chicago can ill afford.

Chicago was built on the backs of immigrants. Without the arrive,' of hundreds
of thousands of people who were willing and even anxious to sweat fol the promise
of a better life, Chicago would be a small farm town. Without contInued pride
on the part of each immigrant group in its own unique ethnic heritage atnd identity,
Chicago would not be the vibrant, hard-working city it is today.

Unfortunately, because both old immigrant groups and thie new immigrant
groups have tried to maintain their uniqueness, the groups have become hard to
reach through normal information networks. An effort matst lie made in 1980
to take account of this and rely more than ever on ethnic organization, to provide
workers and information so that an accurate count can be nade.

I think Chairman Garcia for his continued interest in these problems, and I
congratulate him antl his staff on their lierserverance through so many hearings.
If any support is needed in Washington to bring about a more accurate cenus,
you can count on mine.

STATEMENT OF Hos. JANE M. BYRNE, MAYOR, CHICAGO, ILL.

A government is nothing if it fails to lead and to serve the people it represents.
But even the most resourceful, disciplined and diligent of governments wolld

be hard-pressed to serve its people, if its population statistics, the actual numbers
of people to be served, are an unknown quantity.

A dinner party for 10 that unexpectedly becomes a banquet for 50 will cause
chaos in the kitchen: should the SOul) be thinned, should the portions be smaller,
or should the 10 eat while the rest watch.

In 1970, the Bureau of the Census estimated that it failed to count some 5.3
million people. 2.5 percent of the national population camie to the table for dinner,
only to be turned away. The Bureau acknowledges the error, but just how deeply
the miscount runs in large urban areas, is uncertain. The Bureau itself admits
more minority and urban dwellers are missed than any other group.

The ramifications of the miscount are staggering in their complexity anti their
magnitude. They are felt even now as we prepare for another censtls, joined to-
gether by a new resolve: that there must be no repeat of the failures of 1970.

Some $50 billion and 107 programs, even the apportionment of our congres-
sional districts-the very fiber of this system and this freedom-hinge on our
decisions.

The important role the census-the sheer numbers of people-plays in the
allocation of Federal dollars in Chicago is a well-known fact of life.

For example, in 1978, Chicago's share of general revenue sharing funds was
$81.8 million or more than 10.4 percent of the city's corporate fund. For fiscal
year 1980, the city's share is $70.4 million or seven to nine percent of the 1980
corporate fund. Over a two-year period, while our costs for basic services con-
tinued to e,,calate, our allocation of general revenue sharing funds dropped almost
14 percent. The fall in funding dollars is not solely the result of a decline in popu-
lation estimates, but it is representative of the problems of declining populations.

The critical problems of our cities cry out for an accurate accounting now, during
the first years of the new decade. But already we have been told that the problems
that are certain to occur in the 1980 census will le found and corrected in the next
census. Already, we have been told not to worry.

But we say, we cannot wait another five or 10 years. We cannot wait, and the
people of this city for whom a fair count means fair and equal opportunity will
not wait.

We, in government, have known our people have been out there, but we haye
lacked the means to get to them. As a result, our coffers often have run dry.
Fortunately, we now have the opportunity to find them and reach them. For us
and for them, a fair count need not le impossible; error need not lie inevitable.

We must persevere to extend the safeguards (if the Constitution to every
person-man, woman, child, documented, or undocumented-within our borders.

Permit me to outline briefly some of the steps the city is undertaking to improve
the census and to identify our principle concerns with the Bureau's plans to compile
the 1980 census.
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Every agency in this city will lbe placed at the disposal of the census bureau

for the enormous and formidable tasks. Offices in this city's neighborhood service
centers will be made available for use by census workers.

The city's department of planning and community development will partici-
pate in the Bureau's local review program. In addition, we are in the process of
forming a complete count commission, composed of community, ethnic and
business leaders, to draw on the experience of a few to hel) the many. The com-
mission will be coordinated by the office of the mayor.

We will not evade the issues or sugar-coat the problems involved in the census
count. Instead, we will meet these problems. And we expect the Government to
meet them as well, in a well-organized, straightforward and spirited manner.

In 1970, the bureau was unprepared for the task and a tragic breakdown in
information resulted. Compounding the problem was an unwillingness by officials
to seek out the answers that would have helped.

You have asked us for suggestions this time and we offer now five steps the
bureau could take to minimize the undercount in 1980.

First, in a city such as Chicago, where each of eight languages are spoken by
10,000 people or more, census forms should ihe available in all appropriate lan-
guages. Currently, the bureau plans to print the questionnaire and some publicity
material in both English and Spanish. However, of the one million Chicago
residents who speak a language other than English as their mother tongue, only
20 percent speak Spanish. In Chicago, with the assistance of representatives
from the major ethnic communities, we hope to prepare census material in a
number of foreign languages. We would like to ihe able to share this information
with other cities with a large foreign-speaking stock. To) that end, the bureau
should act as a clearinghouse for the exchange of foreign language information
between cities.

Secondly, the bureau should make every effort to hire more minority and
bilingual enumerators. A study by the National Academy of Science indicates
that over half of the 1970 undercount resulted from missing individuals residing
in enumerated households rather then missing entire households. In potential
problem areas, enumerators should be encouraged to go in person to each home.

Thirdly, the local review program, as it is currently envisioned, allows only
10 days for city officials to review block estimates. The review is a complex process
of checking the completeness of the bureau's household lists by comparing the
block-by-block data against our own population estimates. In Chicago, we have
18,000 blocks with residential housing and 10 working (lays is not enough. An
extension to 20 or even 40 working clays would enable us to provide the Census
Bureau with a more through review.

Fourthly. The bureau should launch an intensive bilingual publicity campaign
that would stress the confidentiality of census stastics. Clearly, there are no easy
solutions to the problem of losing undocumented workers in the census count.
Undocumented workers are historically reluctant to participate in the census for
fear of reprisal. An emphasis on confidentiality might serve as a partial solution.
The Bureau must make clerk r that no other State, Federal or local governmental
agency or official has access to individual census forms and that publishers stastics
(do not identify specific individuals. The city stands ready to assist the bureau
to identify communities where large numbers of undocumented workers reside
and to help devise publicity and enumeration techniques that will be sensitive
to the undocumented population.

And finally, the Bureau should take advantage of administrative data that is
readily available to spot check census estimates. This procedure involves, for
example comparison of name and address information on a driver's license with
similar information on census questionnaires. We strongly recommend this pro-
gram be continued and expanded to include similar information froni other
sources, such a~s birth certificates, IRS returns, social security payments and
Medicaid records.

Working to achieve a fair count in 1980 is the foremost concern of my admin-
istration. We will work closely with the Bureau, and throughout the course of
the census, we will recommend the implementation or modification of procedures
to ensure accuracy. We look for the support of this committee.

In Chicago, as in cities across the Nation, we are not asking for more, but we
want no less than we deserve--a fair count. We look to the census as a new
beginning.
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STATEMENT OF NANCY JEFFERSON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, MIDWEST

COMMUNITY COUNCIL, CHICAGO, ILL.

My name is Nancy Jefferson, and I am currently the Executive l)irector of thw
Midwest Community Council. The Midwest Community Council is a 32 year
old social service agency located on the Wstside of Chicago.

Historically the westside has had a tendency to be overlooked. The numbers
of unemployed, the numbers of persons living in inadequate housing and the num-
bers of persons living at a mere substance level have not seemed to be visible to
a vast majority in Chicago. This is not surprising if we consider that we as black
people, in this city and this country have been historically exchlded from the
count of this nation's population. It is well known that nationwide 7.7 percent
of all blacks as compared to 1.9 percent of all whites were not counted in the
1970 U.S. census. It is estimated that in Illinois over 300,000 person were not
counted. It i'; further estimated that in Chicago over 130,000 were not counted
and of that amount over 87,000 were black.

The seriousness of this cannot be underestimated. With over 100 federal pro-
grams depending on census results to allocate billions of dollars in federal funds
to state and local communities, such a disapportionate under account of minori-
ties leads to a loss of potential revenues to those areas in most need. It is esti-
mated that &s a direct result of the census bureau missing close to 325,000 per-
sons, Illinois lost over 7.5 million dollars. For the city of Chicago, this meant a
loss of close to 2.5 million dollars. In a time of such desperate need this loss is
particularly disturbing to us.

In addition to the loss on revenue sharing, lack of data in respect to the number
of persons and the severity of their problems restrict the capacity of local govern-
ment and community based organizations to plan intelligently and direct adequate
resources to those in need.

Of greater importance, unaccounting minorities adversely effects the political
representation of our areas and thereby denies us one of our basic constitutional
rights.

We recognize that certain measures must be taken to insure the adequate and
accurate measurement of minorities in the 1980 Census. It is well known for
example that many citizens are suspicious of census-takers who are strangers to
their community. To overcome this suspicion we would urge the broad-base
usage of community media services, such as local radio stations and local news-
papers, so that neighborhood residents may become educated as to the true
meaning of the census and the importance of them being counted.

Secondly, we would urge that grass-root community organizations be involved
in the fundamental planning and implementation of census-taking in a given
community. Since community organizations are known to those living in their
area, and since they also have a better understanding of the persons living in their
areas. It stands to reason that community organizations could be instrumental
in increasing the accuracy and the overall coverage of the 1980 Census. It is
preposterous to think that enumerators who are foreign to a community can be
expected to extrapulate vital information from community residents. Indeed the
only manner in which we can assure the adequate gathering of information, is
through the utilization of enumerators who come floor these respective com-
munities. Therefore, we urge this committee to support the hiring of minorities
for such purposes.

Given the future trend of inflation and limit of federal resources it is essential
that minorities in this country not be overlooked again in 1980. We constitute a
significant portion of this country and are entitled to our equal share of federal
funding and political influences. Such rights should not and cannot be denied.

STATEMENT OF THE CHICAGO URBAN LEAGUE

We appreciate this opportunity to express our views on the importance of the
1980 census on behalf of the Chicago Urban League.

The Chicago Urban League is an interracial, non-profit, social service agency
which has provided over 63 years of leadership and service in helping to make
metropolitan Chicago a better place for all its citizens through the improvement
of race relations. Throughout these 63 years the league has acted in an advocacy
role in seeking and supporting equal opportunity for the poor and minority citizens
in Chicago.
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The Chicago Urban League shares the concern which has been voiced by

many others across the country that the undercount of blacks and other minorities
be eliminated. This undercount ensures that the minority population will be short-
changed in two important ways.

One of the ways in which we will be short-changed is in the area of funding.
Revenue sharing funds which are tied to the number of unemployed, housing
grants that are tied to overcrowded living conditions-these are funds which are
needed by the minority community and it is these very people-the unemployed,
the poor living in overcrowded homes-that the census misses. A good example
is the state title I resource equalizer funds for the schools. These funds are gen-
erated by the number of poor children in the Chicago schools. With the crisis in
education we are now facing, each underprivileged child must be identified so that
the schools that serve these children will receive the funds necessary to educate
them. These people-the underprivileged and the children-for whom the census
count is so important, are the ones so often left out.

The second way in which blacks will be short-changed is in political representa-
tion. All of those uncounted residents are basically unrepresented residents. It
is crucially important to blacks and other minorities that we receive all the politi-
cal representation we are entitled to, whether it be in the city council, the general
assembly or the U.S. Congress.

The Chicago Urban League is convinced of the importance of the census. We
urge the Census Bureau to make contact with the minority communities, both
physical contact by enumerators who are dedicated to getting an accurate count
and familiar with the community in which they work, and media contact as well.
Black people should be informed of the purpose of the census, the importance of
the census, and assistance with dealing with governmental forms and procedures
should be provided. The goal of the 180 census should be an accurate count of all
segments of our Nation's population.
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